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Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company dedicates itself to
achieving greater goals in the country’s insurance industry
by investing in the most valuable assets - employees
and the society at large. Bahrain Kuwait Insurance
Company attains it with an increasingly diverse range of
innovative products for our customers, a thoughtfully
designed strategy for employee excellence and countless

sustainable programs that reach out to society.
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At Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company, we invest in our

employees to train, nurture and retain them with continuously
updated programs. It helps them excel in their performance,
build valuable relationships with our customers and contribute
to our missions with utmost commitment. We realise that it
is this investment that makes us stand apart in the industry

registering success that we are all proud of.
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Mr. Murad Ali Murad
Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | extend our gratitude, appreciation and thanks
to His Majesty King Hamad bin Isa AlKhalifa the King of Kingdom of Bahrain and
His Highness the Amir of State of Kuwait Shaikh Nawaf AlAhmed AlSabah. Their
guidance and their respective governments’ support during the year have our high

regards. We moreover highly appreciate the involvement of the various Ministries

and reqgulatory bodies. It is also undoubtedly evident that our achievements would
not have been possible without the unwavering support of our shareholders.

Mr. Murad Ali Murad
Chairman of the Board of Directors




Board of Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is a pleasure to present to you the 46" annual report of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance
Company BSC (BKIC) for the financial year ended 31°t December 2022.

MARKET ENVIRONMENT AND BKIC SHAREHOLDER VALUE COMMITMENT

Even though the insurance business and general international uncertainties have posed numerous challenges over the
recent years, the Board and Management of the Company still uphold an unwavering commitment to the objective
of guiding and overseeing the creation of long-term value to its shareholders through implementing sound business
strategies. The focal point of the Company’s endeavours always revolves around the notion of how to best serve every
esteemed customer giving our utmost attention and service over and above our customer expectation.

DOMESTIC AND WORLD ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL DURING 2022

During 2022, Bahrain welcomed an upswing in tourism and a robust recovery plan for the Kingdom's economy such as
substantial reduction of the budget deficit in line with the economic recovery and fiscal balance programs helped very
much by strong commaodity prices such as oil and aluminum. In contrast, this welcome development coincided with a
drastic change in global dynamics, well worth a mention.

The initial outlook revolved around unprecedented increase in inflation hitting the world's main economies in the North
America and Europe’s, triggering likewise steep increases in the interest rates in main international currencies not seen
for two decades. By year end there was a growing and genuine concern of an outright global recession and a slowdown
delivered by abnormal circumstances such as the continuation in the Russo-Ukrainian War, the higher cost of living and
disruptive supply chain.

Highlighting another factor for the high inflation, the oil price averaging USD 99/bbl during 2022 and closing at USD 81/
bbl (higher by +8.7% YoY) drove the OPEC+ members' decision for a supply reduction (extended to a 2mn barrel cut per
day throughout 2022). Nevertheless, this was subdued by the global demand and other supply sources (ie., US strategic
reserves) to ultimately create a resistance to a further price hike during the year.

Within such geopolitical and economic framework, underpinning business sustainability remained one of 2022 top stories.
Major efforts were taken, targeting on benefit all stakeholders, to alleviate uncertainties, and enhance the methods for
businesses to reduce their impact on the environment and positively contribute to society and overall wellbeing,

LOOKING BEYOND 2022

What the future holds, as far as the economic outlook, it was logical that the 2022 Global Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
would be revised down. Per IMF forecast, it would hover in the vicinity of 3.4% and subsequently slow down to 2.9%
towards the year-ending 2023, representing a figure 0.2% higher than the October 2022 forecasts. In 2024, the growth
level would be at 3.1% which would place it at a lower than the historical average, as per the latest report.

Ensuing the projected fall in global growth and the tightening measures taken by the major central banks, inflation levels
are expected to fall from 88% in 2022 to 6.6% in 2023 and to 4.3% in 2024 respectively.

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC) Annual Report 2022
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Similarly, to Bahrain’s contrasting position, under the GCC markets umbrella, the outlook remains positive. Growth in both
hydrocarbon and non-hydrocarbon sectors as well as currency strength contributes to minimizing the impact of rising
cost of living during the year. Hence, IMF projects a growth for GCC to double in 2022 reaching 6.5% but to nonetheless
slow down to 3.6% in 2023.

GCC non-oil GDP is expected to grow by 4% in 2022 and 3.7% in 2023, all attributed to regional government spendings
and investments into other sectors in a measure to support the neighboring economies. Further support and spendings is
expected in 2023 as higher oil prices would lead to further fiscal surpluses, which yet would be alongside a more prudent
spending during 2023.

Although consumer price inflation in the GCC was significantly lower than the global market at 3.6% during 2022,
it is expected to rise during 2023 due to taxes and rental expenditures on top of the expected increase in food and
transportation costs. Along the same lines, rising cost of funding and labor cost is expected to challenge a larger portion
of the corporates during 2023.

Turning back to Bahrain, after a timid growth of 2.2% in 2021, the Kingdom’s economy is expected to grow by 4.1%
and 2.9% in 2022 and 2023 respectively. While the hydrocarbon sector growth seemingly is expected to be rather
muted, since the 2022 growth was predominately driven by an estimated growth of 5% in the non-hydrocarbons sector
reported by the Ministry of Finance and National Economy, the same trend is anticipated going forward too. Furthermore,
much of the credits to a strong economic recovery plan are evidenced in almost all economic activities including within
the crucial sectors of tourism, transportation and communication, trade and manufacturing as well as the financial field.

BKIC FINANCIAL RESULTS

Despite the continuing volatile market environment during a major part of the year, BKIC achieved a net profit attributable
to the shareholders of BD 4.75 million, compared to BD 4.15 million in 2021, recording an increase of 14%. Contributing
to this, was the increase in the subsidiary’s (Takaful International Company) shareholder’s profit by 8% from the previous
year to reach BD 1 million. This was the highest profit recorded in the history of the company. Total comprehensive
income attributable to the shareholders for the year stood at BD 3.56 million compared to BD 3.99 million in 2021,
showing a decrease of 11%.

The major contributing factor for this performance was a 70% increase in investment income driven by the company’s
strategy to restructure the investment portfolio to earn optimum returns. On the other hand, underwriting profit reduced
to BD 3.81 million from BD 4.47 million in 2021, mainly due to an increase in Loss Ratio from 68% to 74% in 2022, as
a result of the strategic decision taken to strengthen the company’s underwriting reserves for future uncertainties, as a
prudent measure. The BKIC and its subsidiary achieved earnings of 32 fils per share compared to 28 fils in 2021.

The consolidated total profit available for distribution amounts after deducting statutory reserves is BD 4.32 million, and
the Board of Directors proposes the following allocations:

« Cash dividend (9%25) of the paid-up capital BD 3,734,461
(Excluding the Treasury Shares)

- Statutory Reserves (10% of BKIC net profit) BD 424,941

+ Retained Earnings BD 588,718

i 12 GIG Bahrain Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)
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The Board of directors’ remuneration and the executive management expenses for the year are as follow:

First: Board of directors' remuneration details:
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First: Independent Directors:
1- Mr. Murad Ali Murad
- BD90O - - BD 900 BD17500 - - - BD17,500 - BD 18400 -

Chairman

2- Mr. Hasan Mohamed
Zainalabedin - BD2100 - - BD2100 BD17500 - - - BD17,500 - BD 19,600 -
Board Member

3- Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim

Zainal - BD2100 - - BD2100 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD 19,600 -
Board Member

4- Mr. Mohamed Ahmed

AlRayes - BD3000 - - BD3000 BD17500 - - - BD17,500 - BD 20500 -
Board Member

Second: Non-Executive Directors:

1- Dr. Emad Jawad
Bukhamseen - BD1200 - - BD1200 BD17500 - - - BD17,500 - BD18700 BD 1,800
Board member

2- Shawaqi Ali Fakhroo

B - BD1200 - - BD1200 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD 18700 -

B LA e - BD1200 - - BD1200 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD18700 -

Board Member

Third: Executive Directors:

1-Mr.Khaled Saoud AlHasan pno909 . . Bp2100 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD19600 BD 5542

Vice Chairman

2-Mr.Thamer Ebrahim Arab  gh1g50 _ . Bp1g00 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD19300 BDS00

Board Member

3- Mr. Mubarak Othman

Al Ayyar - BD1200 - - BD1200 BD17500 - - - BD17500 - BD18700 BD 900

Board Member

Total - BD16800 - - BD16800 BD175000 - - - BD175000 - BD 191,800 BD 9,142
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Second: Executive management remuneration details:

Executive . : : ' I
Total paid salaries Total paid remuneration  Any other cash/ in kind
=SS and allowances (Bonus) remuneration for 2022 AEEIEEEI SIEUIE
1op six remunerations BD 319,760 BD 180,250 BD 15,055 BD 515,065

for executives

THE COMPANY'S INTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Within the scope of the 2020-2022 Strategy, the Board again scrutinized its implementation to ensure the delivery
of the desired initiatives remain in progress and on track. The focus on inorganic growth, versatile insurance services
continued aligning along the prevailing market conditions. Enhancing all things digital, Insure-tech and electronic services,
conducting cross-company digitalization, all solidified the efforts to better rationalize the operating expenses and the
continuous scrutiny of the needs and requirements within. In doing so, 2022 emerged as a record year both in terms
of financial performance and within the scope of the operational stability in pioneering unique new benefits within the
digital insurance context with cash-back benefits, among others. These benefits were the first of their kind in the Kingdom
of Bahrain.

In December 2022, the Board of Directors approved a new 3-year strategy encompassing 2023-2025. Adopted in a
more prudent and comprehensive manner than in previous years, it entailed a potent emphasis of: Organic & Inorganic
growth, optimizing return on investments (ROI), enhancing loss and expense ratios, establishing large and long-standing
partnerships, digitalization, and Insuretech, ESG and staff; including both training and culture.

The general assembly held on 27 March 2022 approved the appointment of Ernst & Young as an external auditor
for the year 2022. AM Best once again reaffirmed the strength of BKIC as a top-rated direct insurance company at A-
(Excellent) and long-term issuer credit rating of a- (Excellent) with a stable outlook. BKIC is a subsidiary of Gulf Insurance
Group (GIG) which is the largest insurance Group in the region.

Within the scope of the regulatory environment, the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) deliberated through directive dated
16th June 2022 the importance of setting up of an actuarial unit within the Company and the appointment of Bahraini
actuarial experts. The goal of such initiative is not only to create internal actuarial knowhow supporting training and
development of Bahraini talents, but to also support the implementation of the IFRS 17 which would be in effect from
1stJanuary 2023. Notably, having anticipated the requirement for a unit of this nature, BKIC had one established in 2019.
Not only that, but during 2022, in addition to promoting existing personnel, the Company also appointed two analysts
to strengthen the unit.

In response to CBB's directive dated 18™ August 2022 pertaining to cybersecurity requirements, the Company has
formed a Cyber Security Committee within the Company and is building a Cyber Security Framework to enhance the level

of security and protection in line with the regulator’s narrative.

During 2022, another milestone pertained to formalizing and approving the adoption of a prudent Environmental, Social,
Governance (ESG) Framework, one which would be published and included in the 2022 Annual Report. Moreover, in order

i 14 GIG Bahrain Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)



to enhance the governance in the Company Corporate Governance manual was updated, incorporating various directives
issued by CBB relating to Corporate Governance Code. Comprising an ongoing review, HR policy, authority matrix with
regards to the authorized signatories were also updated and approved.

Cultivating the sentiment deployed by CBB's directive dated 28th September 2022 regarding women'’s representation
and/or roles at Board of Directors level, percentage of women and/or the absence thereof has been included in the Annual
Report. Along the same lines, the Board expressly deliberated serious means to encourage and provide opportunities for
women to join the Board membership in the 2023 elections.

Henceforth, the evidence supports the notion that the strategy and initiatives in place have proven to be successful so
much so that the following Board of Directors report illustrates well how the long-term goals and objectives are well-
aligned. Our resilience, strength and dedication to excellence and sustainability remains resolute which is why BKIC has
unfalteringly continued to lead the local market, grow its customer base, expand its international presence, and persevere
as a highly competitive enterprise in the marketplace. The launch of the new Core application in 2023 will elevate the
company’s information technology foundation towards all digital initiatives and operational efficiency.

Going forward, the Board of Directors remains confident that we can all further maximize the competitive advantage
by increasing innovation, emphasizing development, and exploring new segments. As the market landscape continues to
evolve, BKIC will strive to continue positioning itself as an industry leader.

ENVIRONMENT FOR SUSTAINABILITY

The Board continuously maintains the belief that planning and preparing for unexpected events is an essential part of the
recipe for success. No matter what the future holds, embracing thorough and thoughtful succession planning, a valiant
commitment to corporate ethics, a stringent risk oversight and a prudent risk management and talent development
would all navigate BKIC through the challenges ahead.

The Board has been a pioneer in identifying and proactively improving the oversight of the company’s position in both
the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State of Kuwait, given their experience and diversity. In continuation of the efforts to
provide transparent disclosures regarding the strategy of the company, BKIC adopted strong steps into implementing
the environmental, social and governance (ESG) guidelines with additional disclosures and a clear plan for the upcoming
years. This endeavor not only includes the first full ESG report, published within the 2022 Annual Report, but also
embracing the role of being a valuable contributor to society and the essence of the insurance field. Consequently, in
order to enhance the social impact of BKIC, the annual general assembly on 215t March 2022 approved the amount of
BD 50,000 for donations to various segments of the Bahraini community.

A TOKEN OF APPRECIATION
Finally, our achievements would not have been possible without the support of the regulators in Bahrain and Kuwait

and unwavering confidence of our loyal customers, the dedicated staff and all intermediaries, reinsurers, and business
associates. To all, thank you very much indeed.

Thank you,
Mr. Murad Ali Murad Mr. Hasan Mohamed Zainalabedin
Chairman of the Board of Directors Board member

28" February 2023
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Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company has a broader vision of

the development of the society we live in. All of us at Bahrain
Kuwait Insurance Company believe that the success we achieve
belongs to the community around us as well. That's why we
always strive to invest in social well-being and sustainability
initiatives in addition to the insurance solutions that make
people’s lives and their precious assets more secure, ensuring

peace of mind for thousands.
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Allow me a moment to express my sincere gratitude and deep appreciation to the Board of Directors for
their continued support and guidance extended to the Executive Management. Undoubtedly, | would like to
commend and thank all Bahrain Kuwait Ins. Co. (GIG Bahrain) and its subsidiary employees in both Bahrain and
Kuwait for their hard work, dedication, and the continuous due diligence in serving the interests of both clients
and shareholders, especially when challenged by extraordinary socioeconomic quagmires which continuously
change the business landscape. | also wish to thank the GIG Group for the firm and unwavering support on a
myriad of fronts and the resolute readiness to assist our business at any given time.

To our valued clients, shareholders, business partners, reinsurance partners and intermediaries, a debt of
gratitude for entrusting us with your confidence and allowing us to best accommodate, serve and protect all

mutual business interests. With the hope that the future would bring good health and prosperity to all parties
attached to our common goals, | would lastly thank the governments and regulatory bodies in the Kingdom
of Bahrain and the State of Kuwait for their undivided support extended to the company for the past years
and beyond.

Dr. Abdulla Sultan
Chief Executive Officer




Dear Shareholders,

Having concluded the journey through 2022, it is my pleasure to present some key highlights of Bahrain Kuwait
Insurance Company’s achievements throughout the year ending December 31t 2022.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Without question, 2022 will go down in the archives of history as one hard to forget. It would stand out as marking
the end of one era and the commencement of another. The escalation of the Russo-Ukrainian War with the Russian
invasion taking place, the growing China-US tensions, the sad passing of Queen Elizabeth, the world's longest reigning
monarch, intertwined with the discourse of the unprecedented three prime ministers in two months in the UK top the
list. Much more entangled, however, were the circumstances revolving around the return and combat of inflation leading
to hawkish measures by policy makers and massive pull backs in the financial markets.

Nonetheless, high interest rates, declining commadity prices, and prolonged political crisis would be a permanent fixture
for quite a bit of time. In turn, this would substantially weigh down on the economic growth for 2023; hence, the revised
GDP growth of the developed economies (IMF Est 1.2% 2023). Other economic groups are, however, on track to observe
some modest growth.

The GCC Economies are expected to witness a positive year, mainly attributed to regional governments’ initiatives in
sustaining the private sector, encouraging diversification, and building on the contribution of the high hydrocarbon
prices. Yet, the outlook is not too rosy with declining global demand & production cuts in place; the put it succinctly, the
ultimate result would be a lower growth compared to 2022.

The Kingdom of Bahrain stands out having witnessed a remarkable year, helmed by a strong recovery and growth in the
non-hydrocarbon sector. The predominant sectors driving the growth span from the tourism and Hotels & restaurants,
closely followed by transportation and communications, trade and manufacturing, and to a substantial degree, the
finance industry as well. The positive outlook under the economic vision and the sustainable development goals with
massive infrastructure investments alongside the strengthening of the relationship between regional governments
contribute to Bahrain’s fortune within most if not all sectors.

Similarly, the State of Kuwait’s robust economic recovery in 2022 (IMF Est 8%) was attributed to the oil production and
prices with contained inflationary shifts and subsidies resulting in an overall fiscal and current account surplus. Although
slightly more vulnerable and susceptible to external environment risks and uncertainties, Kuwait is nonetheless expected
to undergo a positive growth in 2023.

One risk which engulfs not Bahrain or Kuwait alone, but a wide geographical scale is climate change. During 2022,
droughts and heat waves setting the land ablaze, floods, and hurricanes had a massive impact globally not only on the
human factor but on the core supplies. Adding this to the burden of the humanitarian crisis caused by war and political
unrest serves as a reminder of the importance of businesses and organizations assessing their means to sustain a
strong nexus of support with the community and all stakeholders involved.

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company is committed to implementing initiatives addressing the ESG subjects and has
therefore achieved several milestones over the course of 2022 to address interconnected risk factors and positively
contribute to the wellbeing and benefits of all stakeholders. Accordingly, publishing the first official ESG report would set
a proper guideline and benchmark for the process of addressing pertinent points of impact.

Shifting towards the insurance sector, the year was marked with increased Medical and Motor claims frequency;,
inadvertently or not, close to the pre-pandemic levels.

Annual Report 2022



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2022, Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company continued affirming its lead position in the local market and maintained its
strong presence in Kuwait. Adhering to the aim of growth with profitability and optimum returns to shareholders, the
Company recorded a growth of 14% with an increased net profit attributable to the shareholders of BD 4.75 million (BD
415 million in 2021). This is not only a great achievement, but it also marks a milestone of the highest profit recorded
ever. Moreover, the Takaful International subsidiary’s Shareholder’s Profit increased by 8%. Inadvertently or perhaps not,
the year was marked with an increased Medical and Motor claims frequency, most plausibly alongside the pandemic
recovery. This uptick in attrition claims was accompanied by a strengthening of the reserves which in turn shifted the
Combined Ratio from 91.7% in 2021 to 93.6% in 2022.

By recording a growth of 12% from BD 92.72 million in 2021 to BD 104.26 million in 2022, Bahrain Kuwait Insurance
Company’s consolidated Gross Written Premium crossed the BD 100 million mark. Underwriting profits decreased by 15%
to BD 3.81 million (BD 4.47 million in 2021), due to an increase in Loss Ratio from 68% to 74% in 2022. The technical
reserves increased by 18% from BD 41.46 million in 2021 to BD 4894 million in 2022. Once again, a conservative
reserving approach, a more prudent underwriting philosophy and a sensible investment regime comprised a formula for
success and a positive development.

MACRO-LEVEL OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

The outcome of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company’s underwriting and reinsurance enhancements has positioned the
company at a competitive advantage not only in terms of revenue and profitability, but alongside solvent segmentation
and revamped products offering. Throughout 2022, dedicated Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company staff played an
instrumental role in strengthening the relationship with the reinsurance treaty panellists and larger Facultative
Reinsurers, in conjunction with the larger GIG Group. Both the conventional and the Life & Medical treaties were once again
successfully locked in with reputable A- rated international reinsurance companies. This process continues uninterrupted
throughout the course of the year and paves the way towards realizing the endeavours of increasing the company’s
retention on profitable classes of insurance.

DEVELOPMENTS AND INTERNAL CLIMATE AT THE COMPANY

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company recorded the highest total revenue in terms of GWP since its inception. Not only is
this a feat on its own, but it also highlights how the Company has reached yet another milestone by becoming the first
Bahraini listed (direct) Insurance company to cross the BD 100 million mark in premium volume. Naturally, the Kuwaiti
operations also marked growth. Overall, the focus for Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company continues to be centred around
diversifying the distribution channels and becoming the preferred insurer of choice for corporate and retail clients
especially in the digital arena. This exemplifies the testament to the notion of embracing the future while paying tribute

to remaining grounded and offering comfort to both customers and staff.

The Company’s corporate branding and logo has changed from “gig” to "GIG” along with the parent, as a testimony to
the growth and relevance the organization has become in all its domiciles. Not only is GIG expanding and enhancing its
underwriting and reinsurance capacity to make the business more competitive, but it is also streamlining the process to
remain profitable even within the challenging market conditions. For instance, entering a partnership with entities like
Beema demonstrate the commitment to expanding and diversifying the distribution channels in place.

Digitalization and innovation are key pillars of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company’s growth strategy. Replacing current
legacy core systems with more advanced technologies provide the means to gain a competitive advantage and remain
agile. In its core, internal workflow development would conform to a comprehensive collaboration with internationally
recognized field leaders. Not only would there be positive returns on such digital investments, but its successful
implementation would aid a sound strategy of driving up agility, responsiveness and efficiency while enhancing the
customer experience. Commencing in 2022, this process continuously carries along and extra token of vigour and
excitement.
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Elevating the Underwriting process through revamping the product lines and the enhanced Actuarial-based rating for
both existing and new products (i.e, Cyber, Electric cars & Bicycle Product) serves as a testament to the superior
approach towards sensible innovation, especially within the local market. Evidence thereof is also reflected by introducing
the first of its kind up to 25% Cash-back through the digital-only platform “BKIC powered by Beema”. While Motor &
Medical are the largest Net Lines retained by the company and heavily impact its P&L, the Company has successfully
adopted a robust Underwriting & Actuarial Pricing approach with its subsidiary on Motor too. Lastly, Bahrain Kuwait
Insurance Company has also significantly increased its retention on Medical insurance given the resolute approach of
the underwriting team and the confidence in the portfolio’s performance.

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company takes pride in the newly implemented Award as Great Place to Work, showing the
company’s commitment toward building a stronger workplace environment. As an employer of choice, the journey in
enhancing the culture and environment continues. Along the same lines, Bahrainization has increased to over 85%
while 38% percent of the workforce is female with an average employee age reduced to 36. During 2022, seven
promotions were awarded, and 18% of the Bahraini workforce uphold management or higher roles. Similarly, Bahrain
Kuwait Insurance Company has achieved a Kuwaitization rate of +18% too.

Extensive training and development initiatives through internal and external training programs, through expanding the
emphasis on Future Development Programs and Graduate Development Program have been a focal point. The Human
Resources arm has completed value-added recruitments of well-known market veterans for the sole purpose of training
and developing the respective teams. Succession planning, being a key endeavour in 2022, has alleviated any high-risk
concerns with a clear plan towards a natural progression for identified successors.

The Takaful International subsidiary marked a continuous progression through implementing the kind of positive trends
previously set forth which have welcomed profitable performance and surplus for both policyholders and shareholders
alike. Takaful's profitable period is set forth to mirror the accomplishment and expand it further into 2023. Moreover,
the Optimize Synergy Project has gained traction, with even more synergies being targeted between departments in
2023 and onto 2025.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (ERM)

The ERM frameworks across all facets of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company’s operations have consistently allowed
for an adequate approach in adhering to the set risk appetite and tolerance levels commensurate with the company’s
portfolio and strategy. It is integral to stress on the importance and effectiveness of the different lines of defences, set in
the Risk Management Framework, but most importantly in the First Line of Defence represented by the various business
units. A number of prudent steps across the year revolved around the aim to strengthen the controls implemented at
departmental levels while maintaining operational efficiency. Viral communication with the Board of Directors and their
committees have elevated the comprehensive relationship through various roles jointly responsible for control within
the company.

In 2022, further enhancements, following the CBB directives on cyber security, addressed the risks surrounding the
implementation of Cyber control measures. Through these initiatives, the awareness level of employees and related
stakeholders has reached new heights.

As previously emphasized, one pivotal goal for 2022 revolved around increasing the retention of profitable classes of
business. Not only was this successfully accomplished, but the achievement materialized concurrently with an effective
manoeuvre within the investment portfolio to significantly reduce the fixed income portfolio duration given the trend in
interest rate hikes. Both the former and the latter efforts did and would continuously play a pivotal role in the company’s
strategy to optimize capital.
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RECOGNITION AND DEVELOPMENT

The Management Committees involving Middle-Management input in strategic decision making, allowed for an expansive
team involvement and a thorough quality decision-making process. Not only that, but it helped identify resources with
high potential as well as bore fruit to the Employee of the Year award, the CEO being the patron thereof, with the most
outstanding performer within the set KPIs taking home the prize. Numerous Long service awards were given to staff
during the annual staff party held in December 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG)

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company adopted an ESG framework in 2022 to manage its commitments towards ESG
by adhering to the Bahrain Economic Vision 2030 and United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDGs). The
guidelines outline the steps to be taken by the company through transforming the company’s operations and outlining
the necessary investments needed to accomplish these goals.

Serving both policyholders and shareholders remains a highest priority at Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company, a unilateral
commitment to fulfilling social contribution goals would always remain in place. For all stakeholders’ gravitas and peace
of mind, supporting the community in various environments, social, sporting, and educational endeavours is an integral
part of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company contribution towards society. Within the ESG framework, a systemized
approach is set with respect to the company’s contribution to society. Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company believes
having constant sustainable contributions to the public, aids in making the society a better place. Being ESG-compliant
in business activities, investments, and disclosures would elevate the company’s value for all stakeholders. Not only that
but attuning the Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company ESG initiatives with the existing CSR principles and practices would
boost the highest standards of corporate governance, condone responsible business practice, and most importantly
magnify the positive impact on society.

In 2022, Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company announced its support to the sports sector of the Kingdom by sponsoring
the Bahrain Padel Federation National Team with a contribution of USD 100,000 from April 2022 - December 2023. Not
only did Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company adopt the main platinum sponsor of the Padel federation, but it also extended
the support to two other sponsorships for the Bahrain Weightlifting Championship and Bahrain Bowling Associations with
amounts of BD 2,500 and BD 3,000 respectively. The Company also donated a total of BD 20,981 to various societies
that underscore the educational, environmental, and social sectors. Going forward, Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company’s
stance is to continue investing in the Kingdom’s sports and youth sectors and aid the country’s goal in developing these
into the future.
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Along the same lines, a separate environmental protection activity was arranged in 2022, set to clean up the Askar /
Raas Hayyan Beach in collaboration with a non-profit organisation called Clean-up Bahrain. Participating in such activities
would remain an integral endeavour for Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company for foreseeable future.

THE FUTURE

Every 3 years the Company initiates a new Strategy plan, built from bottom-up with an input from almost everyone in
the company, extending all the way up to the Board. The 2023-2025 approved plan is exciting and, once implemented
successfully, it would reveal a new horizon, one including the invaluable focus on staff and enhanced culture.

Embracing new technological know-how to cater towards meaningful solutions to the new challenges transcends into a
primary goal for Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company. Inasmuch, all new efforts and initiatives within the company remain
unaltered and serve as an example of commitment in the path towards sustainable growth and prosperity. Stringent
discipline aids in identifying and seizing new opportunities in the industry. Awareness of the macroeconomic environment
and digital era trends aids solid business planning and clear long-term strategy and vision. Whether this is in the
implementation of new distribution channels/products and enhancing customer service, new joint venture partnerships,
introducing embedded insurance, optimizing capital, new acquisitions and strategic investments or increasing overall
volume; all represent the constructs of the attitude and the driving forces behind improving Bahrain Kuwait Insurance
Company’s financial acumen, strengthening the company’s solvency, solidifying its pioneering approach, and maximizing
shareholder value for the foreseeable future.

A MESSAGE OF GRATITUDE

In conclusion, | would like to express my sincere gratitude and deep appreciation to the Board of Directors for their
continued support and guidance extended to the Executive Management. Unquestionably, I would like to commend and
thank all our employees in both Bahrain and Kuwait for their hard work, dedication, and the continuous due diligence
in serving the interests of both clients and shareholders, especially when the proverbial new societal status quo has
drastically changed the business landscape. | also wish to thank the GIG Group for the firm and unwavering support on
various fronts and the resolute readiness to assist our business at any given time.

To our valued clients, shareholders, business partners, reinsurance partners and intermediaries, | would like to express
my deep gratitude for entrusting us with your confidence and allowing us to best accommodate, serve and protect all
mutual business interests. With the hope that the future would bring good health and prosperity to all parties attached
to our common goals, | would lastly thank the governments and regulatory bodies in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the
State of Kuwait for their undivided support extended to the company for the past years and beyond.

Thank you,

Dr. Abdulla Sultan
Chief Executive Officer
28 February 2023
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Our Message

As a key player in the insurance industry, Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company acknowledged the importance of Environmental,
Social, and Governance (ESG) within its operations. In 20271, BKIC opt to start the journey to align its operations and investments
“on the longer term” with United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs).

This enables BKIC to have a more sustainable position as a trusted insurance company, and to align its activities and operations to
ESG. This came in time with the ESG Voluntary Reporting Guidelines issued by Bahrain Bourse and Bourse Kuwait.

BKIC and ESG Journey

July 2022

September 2021 \ o ;
+ ESG Guidelines, Disclosures

July 2021

Project August 2021 Materiality December 2021 & Action plan approved by
Commencement & Staff ESG Assessment ESG Guidelines the BoD
Formulation of ESG | . awarenessand | : following and Disclosures . Renamed NRGC {0 NRESG /-
Steering Committee / - training sessions / - Stakeholder to reflect the duties of ESG. /.~
: engagement. /.

Our Sustainability Governance

Sustainability governance aids in the implementation of a company’s sustainability strategy throughout the organization, the
management of goal setting and reporting systems, the strengthening of relationships with external stakeholders, and overall
accountability.

To execute the ESG framework, we've organized an ESG management steering committee. The steering committee oversees the ESG
integration across all business lines and essential insurance and investment decision-making processes. Dealing with sustainability
issues necessitates cross-functional collaboration and support across our whole enterprise.

The committee is assigned several duties relating to ESG, including but not limited to:

» Periodic reporting to Nomination, Remuneration, and ESG Committee (NRESG).
- Aligning the ESG strategy with the subsidiary.
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BKIC Materiality Assessment

Our approach to material acquisition looks at how our business creates value for all stakeholders in the short (2022), medium (2023-
2026), and long term (Post 2026). In line with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards, we assess our economic, environmental,
and social impacts across a range of values (Very material, Somewhat material, Less material) to stakeholders, society as a whole and
our business.

The results of our material assessment had formed our sustainability goals, priorities, and reporting requirements. We have implemented
the methodology used with high levels of independence throughout the process.

The materiality matrix was developed to define our understanding of the influence of each topic on stakeholders’ decisions and impacts
on BKIC's business and prioritizing them.

Governance & Transparency
Ethics & Compliance
Data Privacy
Systematic Risk Management
Financial & Economic Performance
Innovation & Digitalization
Serving our customers
Financial Inclusion & Accessibility
Responsible Underwriting
10. Responsible Investment
11. Fair & Inclusive Workplace
12. Learning & Development
‘ \ > 13. Employee Wellbeing & Health
Short-Term Mid-Term Long-Term (>2026) 14. Direct environmental impact of operations
(2022) (2023-26) 15. Community Investment (Socio-Economic Development)
X 16. Socially Responsible Procurement
Timeframe 17. Nationalization

Low

0

O0OoNOUAWNE

Materiality

High

N\
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2022 BKIC'S SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS

1. ENVIRONMENT

1.1 Direct environmental impact of operations

The natural impact of our operations is limited, given our business model. However, our goal is to control our environment in terms of reducing water use,

energy and waste management and reducing the use of paper and plastic, thus contributing to the conservation for future generations.

Environmental Impact - Total energy consumption

Energy Fuel Consumption Water
Total Energy Consumption Fuel Consumption by Vehicles Utility Water Consumption (yearly) -
Owned by the Co (Petrol) - Bahrain Operations
Bahrain Operations
1,309,086 mWh/ kWh 841 Liters 82,732 m3
1.2 Innovation & Digitalization Credit Rating

The company adopted a comprehensive strategy for Digitalization in 2022
that was approved by the company’s BoD. The strategy was established

with an aim to enhance Customer Service, improve processing efficiently AM. Best A-
through automation solutions, and to enable the company to understand
customer's needs through Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Number of policies issued for the year 159,185

and react accordingly.

2.2 Serving our customers

At BKIC, customer satisfaction is a key driver in all our decisions and
corporate actions. BKIC has enjoyed steady growth because of our solid
relationships with our customers built on mutual trust and integrity.

Some of the activities performed:

+ Anew core system to be in place in 2023.

» Automation of Internal Control triggers to promote ethical and sound
control environment.

« Survey Application for Motor Claims. ) ' )
¥ APP To further enhance customer satisfaction and experience, we at BKIC

ensured that customers' feedback, suggestions and complaints are
No. of Policies Issued through online 8154 polic properly recorded and attained through various channels.
channels in 2022 % POy

With a dedicated Complaint Officer, that is solely responsible for handling

2.SOCIAL and resolving complaints received through various channels including the
online Feedback form. The formal complaints received had declined by
2.1 Financial & Economic Performance 12.5% from 2021 record.

Our commitment to developing a financially strong organization is
reflected in our strong credit rating, and The growth to become the
market leader in the Insurance Industry in Bahrain in terms of gross
premium and net profits, for the benefit of our valued stakeholders. We
aim to continue to contribute towards achieving the company’s vision of
becoming the most-admired insurance brand in the GCC region.
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Total Complaints Addressed & Resolved

Total No. of formal CBB
Complaints as of December 8
31st, 2021

Total No. of formal CBB
Complaints as of December 7
31st, 2022

Customer Experience

2.3 Financial Inclusion & Accessibility

Promoting financial inclusion is part of the BKIC's vision. We believe that
individuals and businesses have the right to access useful, affordable
products and services that meet their needs. For this reason, almost all
our insurance plans and policies can be adjusted according to customer’s
coverage needs and requirements.

We aim to sustain and enhance this standard of inclusion and accessibility
across the organization.

2.4 Responsible Underwriting

We are committed to integrate ESG factors into underwriting activities that
contribute to the uplift of society’s welfare. Our underwriting approach
is designed to suit our long-term goals, and we strive to achieve a superior
footprint in the industry by integrating ESG factors into our underwriting
approach.

We are working to align ESG into responsible underwriting strategies by
2024.

2.5 Responsible Investment

BKIC believes that a responsible investment approach is one that
promotes the integration of ESG aspects to capitalize on opportunities,
as well as handling risks. At BKIC, we are exploring to exclude investing
in certain categories of investment due to adverse societal impact.
Negative Screening as well as prohibited sectors are other areas that
we are exploring.

Overall, through our investments, BKIC seeks to leave a positive legacy
and ensure that the company’s financial performance is improved
through sustainable business practices. We focused on developing more
responsible investment policies to facilitate the transition to a cleaner
future. We also plan to make ESG a key component in investment risk
assessment for new investments and make changes to investment policy
guidelines on the longer term.

Our objective is to bring positive socio-economic-environment impact by
way of business operations and conduct.

2.6 Learning & Development

The company meets the training requirements stipulated by CBB, and
our Human Resources Policy covers a comprehensive training policy and
mandates. All our employees have the opportunity to reach their full
potential and contribute to the success of the BKIC.

The company has a variety of internal & external programs including but
not limited to Training courses, development programs, online learning,
and Soft Skills Training.

Total training delivered 3,200 Hours
Total training delivered by category:

Senior management employees 95 Hours
Middle management employees 220 Hours
Non-management employees 2,885 Hours

Average training per employee:

Number of attendees who completed at least one

e-learning course 53 Employees

Amount invested in training (BHD) 48964

We are committed to embedding equality and inclusion in everything we
do, and we aim to establish an inclusive culture based on our values,
which celebrates diversity, and is non-discriminatory.

2.7 Employee Wellbeing & Health

Occupational safety is one of BKIC's concerns, to meet our obligations to
employees, customers and investors, BKIC strives to maintain a healthy
and productive work environment. We are committed to maintaining a
work environment free of violence, harassment, intimidation and other
unsafe or disruptive situations due to internal and external threats if any.

During 2022, we had arranged for multiple events relating to health and
improved lifestyle:

+ Breast Cancer Awareness

+ Prostate Cancer Awareness and Free Checkup

« Many sport events such as Padel Tournament.

2.8 Fair & Inclusive Workplace

We aim to establish an inclusive culture based on our values, which
celebrates diversity, and is non-discriminatory. We value diversity, equality
and inclusion (DEl), to strengthen our dignity as an organization that
embraces and respects the principle. The company strongly believes in
female empowering, and in attaining diversity at senior management
levels, based on respect for human rights is central to our approach. We
are committed to providing a fair and inclusive work environment that
protects good working conditions and workers' rights.
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2. SOCIAL (Continued)

Total workforce (excluding trainees, students,
and outsourced staff):

Full-time employees 177
Part-time employees 0
Workforce by contract type:

Employees on an indefinite or permanent contract 166
Employees on a fixed term or temporary contract 11

Workforce by Job Category:

Senior management employees 19
Middle management employees 37
Non-management employees 121

Workforce by age:

Employees age 30-18 42
Employees age 50-31 120
Employees age +51 15
Workforce by gender:

Male 113
Female 64
Trainees and sponsored students 7

Number of nationalities

Bahraini 109
Kuwaiti 8
Indian 40
Egyptian 9
Pakistani 1
Jordanian 7
Palestinian 1
Iraqi 2

Female representation in managerial positions:

Senior management

Total employees in senior management positions 6

Female employees in senior management positions 1

Middle management:

Total employees in middle management positions 19
Female employees in middle management positions 4
Turnover

Employee turnover (voluntary) 119%
New Hires

Total new employee hires (Excluding Replacements) 15

2.9 Community Investment (Socio-Economic Development)
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) is the commitment of organizations
to meet the needs and interests of the community, and to take
accountability for the impact of their activities on all stakeholders.
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We are committed to the investment of our communities and to the
promotion of sustainable socio-economic development. Commitment to
the community supports our ESG strategy and we strive to do well in this
direction. The board maintains the belief that planning and preparing for
events of that nature along with the adoption of “Big Donations Strategy”
is an important part of the implementation of CSR.

BKIC also donated significant amount of its budget towards 41 societies
under social activities, education, and environment protections programs
such as:
Bahrain Society for Children with Behavioral & Communication
Difficulties
. Bahrain Cancer Society
Cleanup Bahrain

Community Investment

Total Community Investment Spent (BHD) 20,981

2.10 Nationalization

Our full support for the implementation of the Nationalization is a
national responsibility. BKIC strongly believes in the development and
attracting nationals in the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State of Kuwait. In
both countries, the company is maintaining the required nationalization
percentage stipulated by the labor law.

} o ) Bahrain Office 85%
Nationalization of senior management -
Kuwait Office 2%
} o Bahrain Office 86%
Nationalization among total workforce -
Kuwait Office 18%
, Bahrain Office 107
Total number of national employees -
Kuwait Office 8
) Bahrain Office 44
Number of female national employees -
Kuwait Office 5

2.11 Socially Responsible Procurement

We are committed to building a sustainable supply chain and will only
work with suppliers of the same value. We are committed to working with
suppliers who have demonstrated compliance with our standards, and
we work closely with suppliers to build a sustainable value chain for the
insurance industry in our region. We are procuring most of the services
from local suppliers except for certain IT services which is outsourced
overseas.

We strongly promote and encourage the use of suppliers locally, to
promote national procurement services, with a defined list of suppliers
outlining the same.

Total number of suppliers engaged 45

Total number of local suppliers engaged 45
Total procurement spending (BHD) 121,381
Procurement spending on local suppliers (BHD) 121381
100%

Percentage of spending on local suppliers
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3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

The Company has a policy of benchmarking against established best
practice in the field of corporate governance. The Board has adopted
core values and standards which set out minimum standards in dealings
with shareholders, employees, colleagues, intermediaries, and other
stakeholders of the Company. One of the core values communicated
within the Company is the belief that the highest standard of integrity
is essential in business. The governance of the Company remains under
constant review, in order to enhance compliance levels according to
international standards and best practice. The direct responsibility of the
Board of Directors is to endeavor and be in line with policies as well as the
laws and codes of the regulatory authorities and statutory requirements.

The Company follows the Corporate Governance requirements as
laid down in Volume 3 of the Central Bank of Bahrain Rulebook. This
Corporate Governance Report is also included as a separate item as part
of agenda for the Annual General Meeting.

4. INITIATIVES IN 2022

BKIC implemented several initiatives during the year to fulfill its corporate
governance standards and other requirements emerging during the year.

. The evaluation process for the Board and its committees was
successfully completed and recommendations were made for
improvement.

- The Board reviewed the independence of Directors through
an annual exercise taking into consideration the regulatory
requirements, Board determination as well as best practice.

. Awareness programs were arranged for the Board and Executive
Management with the objective of continuous development
and keeping abreast of updates in market. A full list of programs
presented during 2022 is disclosed in this report.

. Whistleblowing Training was conducted internally for employees,
to enhance and refresh their knowledge and understanding with
respect to the policy and its mandates.

. Succession Planning and the emphasizes on the operational controls
and arrangements to perform the duties in the best manner, to
ensure adequate planning of resources development.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

ERM Policy comprises of a clear framework, governance, principles, tools,
measurements, and responsibilities that is applicable to the company and
in line with the article of association, rules and regulations as well as best
practices issued in that regard.

5.1 BKIC Risk Framework

The company’s actions towards managing key risks and its attitude
towards the types of risks which the company is willing to accept to
achieve its ultimate objectives forms an integral part of its risk evaluation
and assessment.

Risk Management approach is being maintained through effective
reporting of risks using qualitative and quantitative methods in line with
any regulation and governance that will enhance the internal control
environment throughout the organization. Given the nature of the
function and its duties, it is in a continuous evolvement to cater for the
new developments in the industry, operations and regulations.

Below is a brief highlights of RM practices in the company through 2022:

The function is overlooking multiple areas of risk management
operations including the embedding of Board’s Risk Appetite to the
business units operations and ultimately to be integrated in the day
- to day - duties. the function is integrating the same in multiple
aspects, such as Solvency & Capital Adequacy Risks, Liquidity Risk,
Operational Risk, Business Continuity Risks, and emerging risks such
as Taxation and Cyber.

Maintains its practices to strengthen the Internal Control through
training and the day-to-day involvement and promoting Self-
Assessment through risk surveys and engagements on periodic
basis with departments across the company.

Overseeing and managing the operational aspects relating to the
segregation and distribution of the responsibilities and authorities
(including financial authorities) among different levels across all
departments.

Aiding in the embedding of the risk management principles within
the long-range planning process for the company. The practice
contributes to the function by identifying areas for developments
and certain operational difficulties that may occur. It provides insight
on the management of internal control and the synergy between
different lines of defenses.

The function and support of management is aimed at disseminating
and maintaining a culture of risk management within the Company and
providing risk management mechanisms at the organizational level. The
company maintains dedicated resources for Risk Management, that are
reporting quarterly to the Board's Risk Committee administratively to the
CEO) and has full access to the Board of Directors.

5.2 Cyber Security

Following the directives from the CBB relating to that area, the company
had engaged a consultant to perform a gap assessment from the
directives of the CBB under Risk Management module, and subsequently
aid in the road map for implementation including Cyber Strategy and
Framework designed for the company.

The above, is an addition to the current practices performed, and the
function had maintained this area as of focus for the upcoming years. The
company had O incidents relating to Cyber Security in 2022.

5.3 Data Privacy & Personal Data Protection Law

Data Privacy of our clients is on the top priorities of the company. BKIC
had incorporated Personal Data Protection Framework as mandated in
the PDPL law issued in the Kingdom of Bahrain in 2019, relating to storing,
handling, and processing of Personal data (whether for customers or any
third parties) as per the law requirements.

The data that is being collected, is retained by us based on the legal
relationship with the customers and third parties to fulfill the process
requirements, depending on the validity of the contract, fulfilling its
intended purposes and historical archiving if any.

Any breaches of customer data privacy are handled by the Data
Protection Supervisor (DPS), and the overall framework is being audited
independently for compliance, in an extended measure taken by the
company to ensure customers details are safe and secured.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Internal training was conducted to increase awareness among employees
on the importance of the law and its implementation. This forms part
of the company’s strategy in training and raising awareness of the
importance of privacy and client personal data protection.

The company is continuously reviewing the operational measures and
controls to ensure confidentiality given the steps taken by the company
to digitalize its processes, and to take the best advantage of the same,
currently BKIC had implemented various measures that includes but not
limited to:

. Internet access is controlled and restricted users have access.

. Blocking removable storage devices from access to the company’s
network devices.

. Blocking file share websites from company’s network.

. Monitoring Data Leakage Prevention (DLP) through Microsoft
Intune.

The company is exploring the data classification policy for enhanced data
leakage controls.

As of 2022, the company had O breaches to Data Privacy.

6. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

BKIC's shares are listed on the Bahrain Bourse and Boursa Kuwait. The
Company has an authorized share capital of 200 million ordinary shares

of BD 100 fils each and issued and fully paid of 150,000,000 ordinary
shares, each with a face value of BD 100 fils.

6.1 Shareholders

Name Nationality No. of shares % of
Holding

Citizens of the Kingdom of
Bahrain and Others

35,580,301 2372

Gulf Insurance Group (KSC) Kuwait 84,182,323 5612
Warba Insurance Company Kuwait 19,999,997 1333
(KsSQ)

Bank of Bahrain and Bahrain

Kuwait (BSC)

10,237,379 6.82

6.2 Distribution schedule of each class of equity

No. of No. of % of
Category Shares Shareholders Holding
Less than 1% 28,783,174 3676 19.20
1% up to less than 5% 6,797,127 1 453
5% up to less than 10% 10,237,379 1 682
10% up to less than 20% 19999997 1 1333
20% and above 84,182,323 1 5612
Total 150,000,000 3,680 100
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

7.1 Board Composition

The Board composition is based on the Company's Memorandum
and Articles of Association and comprises of ten Members. The
Board members possess a mix of high-level professional skills and
expertise. Furthermore, in compliance with the corporate governance
requirements, the Board Committees consist of Members with adequate
professional background and experience. The Board periodically reviews
its composition and annually evaluates the performance of its Board of
Directors and Committees.

The appointment of Directors is subject to prior approval of the
Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB). The classification of ‘executive’ Director,
‘non-executive’ Director and ‘independen’ Director is as per definitions
stipulated under Volume 3 of the CBB Rulebook.

Status of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors as
at year end 2022:

w

m*m W a S
3
4

Directors are elected/appointed by the shareholders at the annual
general assembly (AGM). Election or re-election of a Director at the
AGM shall be accompanied by a recommendation from the Board,
based on a recommendation from the Nomination, Remuneration and
Governance Committee with specific information such as biographical
and professional qualifications and other directorships held. According
to the Company’s article of association, the board term is defined to be
three years. Therefore, the current term of the Board began in March
2020 and ends in March 2023.

As of 31st December 2022, the Board's representation by gender was
100% Male (Nil Female representation).

The Board is supported by the Board Secretary who provides professional
and administrative support to the general assembly, the Board, its
committees and members. The appointment of the Board Secretary is
subject to the approval of the Board. The Secretary is also assigned with
the respaonsibility of liaising with the regulatory agencies in both Bahrain
and Kuwait.

7.2 Directors' Roles and Responsibilities

The Company is governed through its Board of Directors. The Board's
main roles are to create value to shareholders, to provide entrepreneurial
leadership of the Company, to approve Company’s strategies and to
ensure that the necessary financial and other resources are made
available to enable them to meet those objectives in the strategy.

The Board, which meets at least four times a year, has a schedule of
matters reserved for its approval.

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)



Environmental, Social & Corporate Governance Report

for the year ended 315t December 2022

Specific responsibilities reserved to the Board include:

. Reviewing Company strategy and approving the annual budget.

. Reviewing operational and financial performance.

. Approving acquisitions and divestments.

. Reviewing the Company’s approach of financial control and risk
management.

. Ensuring that appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place.

. Approving appointments to the Board, the appointment of the Chief
Executive Officer and his/her direct repartees and the Company’s
Board Secretary.

. Ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue takes place with shareholders.

7.3 Director’s Induction and Professional Development

The Board is required to be up to date with current business, insurance
industry, regulatory and legislative developments and trends that
will affect the Company’s business operations. Immediately after
appointment, the Company provides a formal induction, for new members
to the Board. Meetings will also be arranged with Executive Management
and the Company’s Heads of Departments. This will foster a better
understanding of the business environment and markets in which the
Company operates. A continuing awareness and development program is
provided to Board members, and it may take many different forms such
as distribution of publications, conducting workshops, presentations at
Board meetings and opportunities to attend conferences encompassing
topics on directorship, business, insurance industry and regulatory
developments.

The development programs arranged for the Board members during
2022 include:

1. Understanding Takaful Insurance Companies Financial Statements
vs. Conventional (pre and post IFRS 17) - 12th and 13th December
2022

2. Mergers and Acquisitions - 28th December 2022

Number of development program hours attended by board members,
arranged by the Company or otherwise are:

Name of Director Total Number of Hours

Mr. Murad Ali Murad 205
Mr. Khaled Saud Al Hasan 15
Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin 15
Dr. Emad Jawad Bukhamseen 17
Mr. Bijan Khosrowshahi 15
Mr. Shawqi Ali Fakhroo 15
Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal 15
Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab 15
Mr. Mubarak Othman Al Ayyar 15
Mr. Mohamed Ahmed AlRayes 165

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)

7.4 Board and Committee Evaluation

The Board performs a self-evaluation on an annual basis. The Board
annually reviews its Charter and its own effectiveness; and initiates
suitable steps for enhancement and improvement. The Board will also
review self-evaluations of the individual Board members and the Board
Committees and consider appropriately any recommendations arising
out of such evaluation.

7.5 Director’s Profile

Mr. Murad Ali Murad (Independent)

Chairman

Director since 28 March 2004

Fellow Member of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chairman of Bank of Bahrain and Kuwait (BSC), Bahrain

. Chairman of Al Janabya Company WLL (Family Company), Bahrain

. Deputy Chairman of Bahrain Institute of Banking and Finance
(BIBF), Bahrain

Mr. Khalid Saoud Al Hasan (Executive)

Vice Chairman

Director since 28 March 2006

Bachelor degree in Political Science and Economics from Kuwait

University, Kuwait

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chairman of Kuwait Insurance Federation (KIF), Kuwait

. Board Member of Arab Reinsurance Company, Lebanon

. Board Member of Chief Executive Officer of Gulf Insurance Group
(KSO), Kuwait

. Board Member in many of Gulf Insurance Groups' Subsidiaries

Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin (Independent)

Board Member

Director since 1975

Bachelor Degree in Economics from Cairo University, Egypt

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chairman of SYSCON Trading and Mechanical Services Co, WLL,
Bahrain

. Chairman of ZEN Trading and Contracting Co,, WLL, Bahrain

. Chairman of FAZ Trading and Supplies Co, WLL, Bahrain
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Dr. Emad Jawad Bukhamseen (Non-Executive)

Board Member

Director since 7 August 2005

Ph.D.in Hotel and Tourism Industry from American University, UK

Doctor in Business Administration from European School of Management

(DBA), UK

Master of Business Administration and Economics from University of

Liverpool, UK

Bachelor of Financing Accounting from Beirut College, Lebanon

Bachelor of Business Administration from Brad Ford College, America

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chairman of Al-Arabiya Real Estate Company, Kuwait

. Chairman & CEO of Al-Baraka Media Group, Kuwait

. Chairman of Gourmania International, Kuwait, Dubai and London

. Chairman & CEO of Al Houda Hotels for Travels & Tourism Company,
Kuwait

. Owner of IHG Hotels Group, Kuwait

. Chairman & Owner of Bukhamseen Square Company, Kuwait

. Chairman of National Arabic Inspection Services, Kuwait

. Chairman of Arab Logjstics Services, Kuwait

. Chairman & CEO of Al Huda Medical Services Company, Kuwait

. Chairman of Bukhamseen Aviation Group, Kuwait

. Chairman of Kuwait International Automobile Club, Kuwait

. Chairman, Managing Director & CEO of Al Arabia.com-Real Estate
Marketing, Kuwait

. Chairman & Partner of Interiors Collaborative (Interiors Design),
Kuwait

. Chairman of Al Baraka Kuwait General Trading & Contracting
Company, Kuwait

. Chairman of Bukhamseen General Trading & Contracting Company,
Kuwait

. Chairman of Arab National Company for Tourism Facilities
Management (Marafick National), Kuwait

. Chairman of Layan Real Estate LLC - Dubai, UAE

. Chairman of Kuwait Bararie Trading Company, Lebanon

. Vice Chairman & CEO of Bukhamseen Group Holding Company,
Kuwait

. Vice Chairman & CEO of Bukhamseen Group Co. for Real Estate,
Tourism, General Trade and Contracting LLC, Iraq

. Vice Chairman of Arabiya Real Estate Investment Co, Egypt

. Vice Chairman of Sharm Dreams Company for Real Estate
Development, Egypt

. Vice Chairman of Landmark Company for Real Estate Development,
Egypt

. Vice Chairman of Kuwait International Education Company, Kuwait

. Vice Chairman of Jawad Bukhamseen & Sons Charity House, Kuwait

. Vice Chairman of World Union of Arab Bankers, Lebanon

. Board Member of Kuwait Clearing Company, Kuwait

. Board Member of United Steel Industrial Company, Kuwait

. Board Member of Tanmiya Realty Development Company, Kuwait

. Board Member of Misr International Towers / Holiday Inn, Maadi -
Cairo, Egypt

. Board Member of Safir Al Sayedha Zeinab Hotel - Damascus, Syria

. Partner of MNA Group (Contractor and Interior Design), Kuwait

. Partner of Gulf Energy Company, Kuwait

. Board Advisory of American University of Kuwait (College of
Business & Economics), Kuwait

. Consultant of Arabian Beverages Company, Kuwait, Saudi Arabia,
Bahrain, Egypt, Qatar & Irag
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Mr. Shawgi Ali Fakhroo (Non-Executive)

Board Member

Director since 25 February 2008

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chairman and Managing Director of Ali Bin Yousif Fakhro & Sons
WLL, Bahrain

. Chairman and Managing Director of Shawki Ali Fakhroo & Sons WLL,
Bahrain
Chairman and Managing Director of Fakhroo Trading Agencies WLL,
Bahrain
Chairman and Managing Director of Fakhroo Investment WLL,
Bahrain

. Chairman and Managing Director of Areej Trading Establishment,
and Amwaj Water Equipment (Subsidiaries of Bahrain Fakhroo
Investment WLL), Bahrain

. Chairman of Mohammed Fakhroo & Brothers WLL, Bahrain
Chairman of Fakhroo Information Technology Service WLL, Bahrain

. Chairman of Shutdown Maintenance Services WLL, Bahrain

. Vice Chairman of BMMI (BSC), Bahrain

. Board Member of Zallag Resort Co. (BSC), Bahrain
Board Member of Bahrain Cinema Co. (BSC), Bahrain

. Member of the Board of Trustees of Alosra Charitable Foundation
Member of the Board of Trustees of Bahrain Philanthropic Society
Member of the Board of Trustees of Yousif Abdulrahman Fakhroo
Charitable Foundation

Mr. Bijan Khosrowshahi (Non-Executive)
Board Member
Director since 28 February 2011
MBA and Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from Drexel
University, USA
Directors’ external appointments:
. President of Fairfax International, London
Board Member of Gulf Insurance Group (GIG), Kuwait
. Board Member of Gulf Insurance & Reinsurance Company (GIRI),
Kuwait
Board Member of Arab Misr Insurance Group SAE, Egypt
. Board Member of Arab Orient Insurance Company, Jordan
Board Member of Gulf Sigorta AS, Turkey
Board Member of Alliance Insurance PS.C, UAE
. Board Member of Jordan Kuwait Bank, Jordan
Board Member of GIG Gulf, Bahrain
Board Member of GIG Cooperative Insurance, KSA
. Board Member of Colonnade Insurance S.A, Luxembourg
Board Member of Southbridge Compafifa de Seguros Generales SA,
Chile
. Board Member of La Meridional Compafiia Argentina de Seguros
SA, Argentina
Board Member of SBS Seguros Colombia S.A, Colombia

Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal (Independent)
Board Member
Director since 5 March 2014
Masters of Business Administration from University of Strathclyde,
Glasgow, UK
BSc. in Management Information Systems from University of Texas,
Arlington, USA
Directors’ external appointments:
Board Member of Mohamed Ali Zainal Abdulla BSC ©, Bahrain
. Board Member of Zainal Enterprises WLL, Bahrain
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Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab (Non-Executive)

Board Member

Director since 23rd March 2017

BSc. in Computer Science from California University, America
Directors’ external appointments:

Mr. Mohamed Ahmed AlRayes (Independent)

Board Member

Director since 25th March 2020

Master of Business in Finance from the University of Otago, New Zealand
Bachelor in Finance from the University of Otago, New Zealand

. Chief Executive Officer of Health Assurance Hospitals Company Directors’ external appointments:

(DHAMAN), Kuwait . General Manager - Treasury and Investment in Bank of Bahrain and
. Board Member of United Networks Group, Kuwait Kuwait (BSC), Bahrain
Chairman of BBK Gegjit Securities (KSC), Kuwait
Member of the Supervisory Committee of the Bahrain Liquidity
Fund, Bahrain
Member of the Supervisory Committee of Sakana Holistic Housing
Solutions, Bahrain
Member of the Supervisory Board of the Bahrain Bourse Guarantee
Contribution Fund, Bahrain

Mr. Mubarak Othman Al Ayyar (Executive) .

Board Member

Director since 23rd March 2017

BSc. in Management from Ajman University of Science & Technology, UAE

Cll'in Insurance from the Chartered Insurance Institute, UK

Directors’ external appointments:

. Chief Executive Officer of Gulf Takaful Insurance Company (GIG-
Kuwait Takaful)

. Chairman in Gulf Leading Real Estate Company (K.S.CC), Kuwait

7.6 Board Meetings
As per the charter of the Board, the directors are required to meet at least four times in a given financial year to discharge its responsibilities effectively.

7.6.1 Board Meetings and Record of Attendance
During the year 2022, the Board of Directors met eight times, and a record of the member’s attendance at the meetings is set below:

. % of
Name of Director 17Feb 21Mar 28Apr 25Jul 20Sept 21Sept 10Nov 21 Dec ;‘tet::"zf_: Meetings
attended

Mr. Murad Ali Murad ~ 5

Chairman & & & & & & & & 7 83
Mr. Khaled Saoud Al Hasan ~ o~ ~ o~ p o~ o~ ~
\/iCe Chairman W w w w w w W W 8 100
Mr. Hasan Mohamed Zainalabedin ~ o~ P ~ P ~ P ~

BOCll’d Membe/’ w w W w w w w w 8 100
Dr. Emad Jawad Bukhamseen P p ~ -~ p -~ P -~

Board Member Ww w Ww w W w w w 8 100
Mr. Bijan Khosrowshahi < 5 5

Board Membor G G G G G G G G 7 88
Mr. Shawgi Ali Fakhroo ~ o~ ~ o~ P o~ o~ -~

Boal’d Member W w w w w w W W 8 100
Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal ~ ~ P ~ P ~ p ~ 8 100
BOClrd Membef Ww w w w w w w w
Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab ~ o~ ~ o~ . = = = 8 100
Board Member Ww w Ww w W w w w
Mr. Mubarak Othman Al Ayyar P o~ P o~ P o~ P o~

Boal’d Member W w w w W w w w 8 100
Mr. Mohamed Ahmed AlRayes ~ o~ ~ o~ P o~ o~ o~ 8 100
Boal’d Member W W W w w W w W

& = Attended

& = Not Attended
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7.6.2 Key Matters Discussed and Final Decisions Taken
The summary of final decisions taken on Key Matters discussed during the meetings is also stated below:

Meeting Date Key Matters Discussed Final Decision
17th Feb 2021 The consolidated financials at 31st December 2021. Approved
Recommendation to AGM to distribute cash dividends of 20% of the paid-up capital and to transfer Approved
of BD 370,293 to statutory reserve.
Recommendation to AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as external auditors for year 2022. Approved
Re-appointment of Grant Thornton as internal auditors for year 2022. Approved
Amend the Authority Matrix. Approved
The directors’ remunerations for the year 2021. Approved
The employees’ bonus for the year 2021. Approved
Amend The HR Policy. Approved
21st Mar 2022 Board and Board Committees’ Composition. Approved
The Variation Cost of New Core Application Project. Approved
The Sponsorship of Bahrain Padel National Team. Approved
The Nomination of the CEO to Gulf Assist Board. Approved
28th Apr 2022 The consolidated financials at 31st March 2022. Approved
Change the Company's Logo. Approved
25th Jul 2022 Increase in External Audit Fees for 2022. Approved
The consolidated financials at 30th June 2022. Approved
Amend the Investment Policy Approved
The ESG Guidelines and Action Plan. Approved
Amend the NRESG Committee’s terms of reference. Approved
Amend the Directors Compensation Policy Approved
Amend the Corporate Governance Manual Approved
Appoint Ms. Fatima AlSaffar as Acting CFO. Approved
20th Sept 2022 Brainstorm and discuss potential initiatives for the Company’s Strategic Plan For 2023-2025. Approved
21st Sept 2022 Review the IFRS17 and IFRS9 Dry Run Results. Approved
10th Nov 2022 Increase the company’s shareholding in Gulf Assist. Approved
The consolidated financials at 30th September 2022. Approved
21st Dec 2022 The Company’s Strategy for 2023-2025 and the Budget for the year 2023. Approved
Appoint Ms. Fatema AlSaffar as CFO. Approved
Appoint Mr. Abdullah Alkhulaifi as GM of Kuwait Office. Approved
Donation to Renovate Seef Garden. Approved
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7.7 Remuneration of Directors

The Board of directors is paid an annual remuneration as approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting which is governed by the article
no. (188) of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law No. 21 for the year 2001 and its amendments. Directors' remuneration is accounted as an expense
as per international accounting standards and CBB regulations, the payment of which is subject to approval by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting. In addition, the members are paid sitting fees and other compensations for the various Board Committees as per the approved Directors’
Compensation Policy. The details of remuneration and other payments made are available in the Board of Directors Report.

Board of directors’ remuneration and allowance details paid during 2022:

Name of Director Title Total allowance Remunerations  Aggregate amount Expenses
for attending of the chairman (Does not Allowance
Board and and BOD include expense
committee allowance)
meetings

First: Independent Directors:

Mr. Murad Ali Murad Chairman BD 900 BD 17,500 BD 18,400 =
Mr. Hasan Mohamed Zainalabedin Board Member BD 2,100 BD 16,250 BD 18350 -
Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal Board Member BD 2,100 BD 17,500 BD 19,600 -
Mr. Mohamed Ahmed AlRayes Board Member BD 3,000 BD 17,500 BD 20,500 =
Second: Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Emad Jawad Bukhamseen Board Member BD 1,200 BD 17,500 BD 18700 -
Shawgi Ali Fakhroo Board Member BD 1,200 BD 17,500 BD 18,700 -
Mr. Bijan Khosrowshahi Board Member BD 1,200 BD 17,500 BD 18,700 -

Third: Executive Directors:

Mr. Khaled Saud Al Hasan Vice Chairman BD 2,100 BD 17,500 BD 19,600 BD 2,446

Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab Board Member BD 2,100 BD 17,500 BD 19,600 BD 712

Mr. Mubarak Othman Al Ayyar Board Member BD 1,200 BD 17,500 BD 18,700 -
Total BD 17,100 BD 173,750 BD 190,850 BD 3,158

7.8 Key Persons Trading Policy

The Company has established a “Key Persons Trading Policy” to ensure that insiders are aware of the legal and administrative requirements regarding
holding and trading of BKIC shares, with the primary objective of preventing abuse of inside information. The policy covers the regulation of Bahrain
Bourse relating to Key persons.

“Key Persons” are defined to include the Directors, Executive Management, designated employees and any person or firm connected to the identified key
persons. Responsibility for ensuring compliance with the Key Persons Trading Policy is entrusted to the Secretary to the Board.
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7.9 Director's and Related Parties’ Interests
The number of shares held was as follows:

Name of Director Type of shares 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Mr. Murad Ali Murad Ordinary 299,999 299999
Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin Ordinary 996,307 983655
Mrs. Shahnaz Ishag Abdulrahman Ishaq Ordinary 4,630 4,630
Mr. Faisal Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin Ordinary 68,354 68354
Syscon Trading & Mechanical Services Co Ordinary 316,306 316,306
Mr. Shawqi Ali Fakhroo Ordinary 525,455 525,455
Mr. Ali Shawgi Ali Fakhroo Ordinary 13,728 13,728
Inheritors of Ali Bin Yusuf Fakhroo Ordinary 884,376 884,376
Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Ali Zainal Ordinary 130,000 118631
Mohammed Ali Zainal Abdulla BSC (MAZA) Ordinary 6,797,127 6,797,127
Dr. Abdulla Salah Saleh Sultan Ordinary 34,292 34292

1. Related Party.

2. Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin purchased 12,652 shares during 2022. Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal Purchased 11,369 shares during 2022.
Company has complied with the required procedures relating to the key persons transactions as required by Bahrain Bourse. The other Board members
did not trade in the shares of the company during the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

3. The CEO did not trade in the shares of the company during the financial year ended 31 December 2022. The other members holding positions of
approved status within the company do not hold any shares of the Company in their names or in the names of their families.

7.10 Code of Conduct

The Board has reviewed and approved a Code of Conduct for the Company’s Directors. The Board has also approved the Code of Ethics for the Executive
Management and employees. These codes outline areas of conflict of interest, confidentiality, and the responsibilities of signatories to adhere to best
practices.

7.11 The Roles of The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly defined and has been approved by the Board.
The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its strategy and in the achievement of its objectives. The Chairman is responsible for organizing
the business of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness, and setting its agenda. The Chairman is not involved in the day-to-day business of the Company. The
Chairman facilitates the effective contribution of Directors and constructive relations between them, ensures that the directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information and effective communication with shareholders.

The Chief Executive Officer has the responsibility of managing and running the affairs of the Company on a day-to-day basis and is accountable to the
Board for the overall management of the Company and more importantly it's financial and operational performance.
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7.11.1 Executive Management's Profile

Dr. Abdulla Salah Sultan

Chief Executive Officer

Joined BKIC on 2nd May 2019

Academic & Professional Qualification:

+ Fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute (FCII), UK

+ Associate in Risk Management (ARM) - The Institutes, Pennsylvania,
USA

« Certified Catastrophe Modeler (CCM) - AR Institute, Boston, USA

« Doctor of Business Administration (DBA) - Swiss Business School,
Switzerland

+ Master of Business Administration (MBA) - University of Strathclyde,
UK

« Master of Science in Applied Research (MSc) - Swiss Business School,

Switzerland
« Bachelor of Science (BSc) in Marketing with concentration in Finance
- NYIT, USA
Assignments Held:
« Board Member of Takaful International Company BSC, Bahrain
« Board Member of United Insurance Company BSC (c), Bahrain
+ Board Member of Bahrain Insurance Association, Bahrain
+ Board Member of GIG Egyptian Takaful (Property & Liability), Egypt
« Board Member of CBB Motor Compensation Fund, Bahrain
+ Board Member of Gulf Insurance Federation, UAE
- Member, Bahrain Polytechnic Strategic Advisory Committee, Bahrain
» Board Member of Etlaa properties, Bahrain

Bahrain Office

Mr. Ali Ebrahim Noor

Chief Operating Officer

Joined BKIC on 4th February 2018

Professional Qualification:

- Insurance Dip Cert

Assignments Held

+ Board Member of Health 360° Ancillary Services WL.L, Bahrain

- Expertise in the fields of Medical, Life, Business Development,
Marketing and distribution Channels

« Involved in Digital Transformation of the company’s processes

« 29 years of substantial experience in Insurance Industry

Ms. Fatema Tagqi AlSaffar

Chief Financial Officer

Joined BKIC on 28th September 2013

Academic & Professional Qualification:

- B.Sc in Accounting

» Associate of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)

Assignments Held:

» Heads the Finance and Accounts Department of BKIC

» More than 16 years of experience in Insurance/Reinsurance Sectors

Mr. Ahmed A. Rahman Bucheeri

Chief Investment Officer

Joined BKIC on 1st December 2011

Academic & Professional Qualification:

» Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst

» Commercial studies Diploma

+ Treasury and capital markets Diploma

- Investment representative program (Series 7)

Assignments Held

+ Board Member of Takaful International Company BSC, Bahrain
+ Manages investments and treasury of BKIC

+ Member of the Investment Committee of GIG-KSA

+ Member of the Investment Committee of GIG-Turkey

23 years of experience in banking and investments

Mr. Manoj Badoni

Chief Underwriting Officer

Joined BKIC on 10th August 2016

Academic & Professional Qualification

+ Masters in Economics (MA)

« Fellow of Insurance Institute of India (FIl)

Assignments Held

+ Responsible for the overall Insurance Underwriting, Claims and
Reinsurance operations in Bahrain

+ 35 years of experience in General Insurance Industry which includes
FAC Reinsurance Underwriting

Kuwait Office

Mr. Abdullah Faisal AlKhulaifi

General Manager

Joined BKIC on 21st June 2006

Academic & Professional Qualification:

+ Diploma in Marketing and Public Relations

+ Organizational Leadership eDiploma from Harvard Business School

+ Insurance Cert. of Chartered Insurance Institute, UK

Assignments Held:

+ Holds the overall responsibility of all functions of general
management of BKIC Kuwait office

+ Ex-member of Kuwait Insurance Federation - Fire and General
Accidents Committee

+ More than 17 years of experience in Insurance Industry in Kuwait

Mr. K. Gandhi

Chief Underwriting Officer

Joined BKIC on 2nd July 2006

Academic & Professional Qualification:

+ Postgraduate in Engineering

+ Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers, India

+ Master of Business Administration

Assignments Held:

+ Responsible for the overall Insurance Underwriting, Claims and
Reinsurance operations in Kuwait

+ Actively involved in serving major Corporate Clients and assists
General Manager in the day-to-day General Administration and
Management of the Technical functions of the Company

+ More than 38 years of experience in Insurance Industry, out of which
21 years in Gulf

Mr. Thomas Chacko

Senior Manager, Finance & Administration

Joined BKIC on 9 February 1992

Academic & Professional Qualification:

- Bachelor of Science

Assignments Held:

+ Heads the Finance and Administration Department of BKIC Kuwait
Office

+ More than 31 years of experience in Insurance Industry in Kuwait
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7.12 Board Committees

Board committees are formed, and their members are appointed by the Board of Directors at the beginning of each Board term. They are considered
the high-level link between the Board and the Executive Management. The objective of these committees is to assist the Board in monitoring the actual
operations of the Company, by reviewing issues that are submitted by management to the Board and making recommendations to the Board for their
final review. As best practice, these committees and their chairman are re-elected annually in the first Board meeting subsequent to the AGM.

The Board reserves the right to form temporary committees and discontinue them from time to time and as it deems necessary. Further, the members
of the Board are provided with copies of meeting minutes of the said committees, as required by the regulators. All committees of the Board review their
terms of reference on regular basis, and these are then approved by the Board of Directors

The Board has formed four committees as follows:
- Executive Committee

+ Audit & Compliance Committee

- Nomination, Remuneration & ESG Committee

« Risk Committee

7.13 Board Committees’ Responsibilities, Meetings and Record of Attendance

7.13.1 Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the following responsibilities to the Executive Committee;

« The development and recommendation of strategic plans for consideration by the Board that reflect the long-term objectives and priorities
established by the Board;

- Implementation of the business plans and policies of the Company as determined by the Board,

+ Monitoring of the operational and financial results against plans and budgets,

- Monitoring the quality and effectiveness of the investment process against objectives and guidelines;

- Prioritizing allocation of capital to optimize risk adjusted returns

The members of the Executive Committee and their attendance at the four meetings held during the year were as follows:

Name of Director Title 13Feb  24Apr  243Jul  6Nov rt‘:‘::‘i:f;
Mr. Khalid Saoud Al Hasan Chairman &) & & (&) 4
Dr. Emad Jawad Bukhamseen Vice Chairman a) G (&) (& 4
Mr. Bijan Khosrowshahi Member ) & & & 4
Mr. Mubarak Othman Al Ayyar Member ) (&) -, (@) 4
Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Al Rayes Member o) o e ' 4
L 38 GIG Bahrain Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC)



Environmental, Social & Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 315t December 2022

7.13.2 Audit & Compliance Committee
The Board has delegated the following responsibilities to the Audit & Compliance Committee:

Reviewing the Company’s draft financial statements and interim
results statement prior to Board approval and reviewing the
external auditor’'s detailed reports thereon;

Reviewing the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting
policies and other operational procedures;

Reviewing regularly the potential impact in the Company’s financial
statements of certain matters such as impairment of fixed asset
values and proposed changes in International Financial Reporting
Standards and International Accounting Standards applicable to
the Company;

Reviewing compliance of requirements specified in the Rulebook
issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain and the regulatory authority
in Kuwait.

Reviewing and approving the terms of engagement for the audit;
Reviewing an annual report on the Company’s systems of internal
control and its effectiveness, reporting to the Board on the results
of the review and receiving regular updates on key risk areas of
financial control; and

Reviewing the internal audit functions terms of reference, its work
program and quarterly reports on its work during the year.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit & Compliance Committee
monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
any formal announcements relating to the Company’s performance.
The Committee is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the
external audit and internal process.

It is responsible for ensuring that an appropriate relationship between
the Company and the external auditors is maintained. It also reviews
annually the Company’s systems of internal controls. The Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the internal audit and is responsible for
appointment and termination of the internal auditors.

The Committee meets with the Directors and management, and as and
when considered required with both the external and internal auditors.

The internal audit function is outsourced to Grant Thornton, Bahrain
who conduct their procedures as per the agreed terms of reference
and provide their periodic reports directly to the Audit & Compliance
Committee.

The members of the Audit & Compliance Committee and their attendance details at the four meetings held during the year were as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin
Mr. Shawqi Ali Fakhroo
Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal

Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab

Title

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Member

Member

13Feb  24Apr  243ul Sihoy, rt‘:::\i:isi
s & G & 4
G G G < *
G G & “ !
(7 < < 4 *

7.13.3 Nomination, Remuneration & ESG Committee
The Board has delegated the following responsibilities to the Nomination, Remuneration & ESG Committee:

Assist the Board of Directors in identifying and nominating
individuals qualified to serve as Board and committee members of
the Board.

Recommend the remuneration and rewards policy for the Company
and in particular, for the directors and executive management team,
and lead the performance review of the Board and committees.
Enhance the company’s governance and compliance levels
according to international standards and best practice to be in line
with policies of regulatory authorities and statutory.

. Recommend to the Board the appointment of the company’s
representatives to subsidiaries and associates boards.

. Discuss and conduct research in identifying avenues where the
company can leverage efficient ESG implementation and reduce
costs /increase economic profits.

. Ensure reporting and mapping of ESG metrics (including metrics
provided by Bahrain Bourse and Boursa Kuwait in the annual ESG
report published by the company.

The members of the Nomination, Remuneration & ESG Committee and their attendance details at the three meetings held during the year were as

follows:
Name of Director Title 6 Feb 28 Jun 5 Dec Meetings
Attended
Mr. Murad Ali Murad Chairman e e e 3
Mr. Khalid Saoud Al Hasan Vice Chairman & & & 3
Mr. Hassan Mohammed Zainalabedin Member & e e 3
Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Al Rayes Member ra a) a) 3
Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC) Annual Report 2022
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7.13.4 Risk Committee

The Board has delegated the following responsibilities to the Risk Committee:

Assist the board in the preparation, review, and approval of risk
management policies & procedures in addition to setting acceptable
limits & adequate internal controls and ensure the execution of
these policies and strategies which commensurate with the size
and nature of the business activity.

Assist the board to identify and assess the acceptable level of risk
in the company (Risk Appetite), and make sure that the company
does not exceed the level of risk approved by the board. Further,
the board shall evaluate the same according to the group’s Risk
Appetite toward its subsidiaries.

Evaluate the systems and techniques of risk management for
identifying, measuring, and monitoring various risks that the
company is exposed or may be exposed to, in order to determine
its deficiencies.

Supervise the implementation of the company’s risk policy and risk
management framework, including coverage of all aspects of major
and minor risks.

Monitor the company’s financial strength supported by strong
capital adequacy, to ensure its ability to meet all its obligations
towards all stakeholders.

The members of the Risk Committee and their attendance details at the three meetings held during the year were as follows:

Name of Director Title 3 Feb 6 Jul 27 Oct zlt:::::f.:

Mr. Thamer Ebrahim Arab Chairman & & & 2

Mr. Mohamed Ebrahim Zainal Vice Chairman ) ol (& 3

Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Al Rayes Member o & & 3

Dr. Abdulla Salah Sultan Member o o) o) 3
7.14 Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the external auditors, as well as their relationship with the Company. This includes monitoring the use
of the auditors for audit and non-audit services, and the budget of the total fees paid to the auditors.

Details with regards to the audit and non-audit fees for 2022, paid by the Company are stated below:

Audit fees BD 65,507

BD 187,431

Non-audit fees

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)
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8. OTHER MATTERS

8.1 Capital Adequacy and Solvency

Capital Adequacy and Solvency margin requirements are determined in accordance with the regulatory requirements established by the Central Bank of
Bahrain and are calculated with reference to a prescribed premium and claims basis. Where these calculations resulting solvency margin requirements
falling below the minimum fund size prescribed by regulations, such minimum fund size is considered as the required margin of solvency.

Summarized solvency position of the Company is given below:

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Capital available 31,648 30,040
Solvency margin required 7,166 6,042
Total excess of capital available over the solvency margin required 24,482 23,998

8.2 Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company BSC is fully committed to comply with all regulatory provisions including the Central Bank of Bahrain rule book
requirements, Kuwait regulations applicable for its Branch operation, and endeavors to adopt the best international practices applicable to compliance
and anti-money laundering.

The Company has a dedicated Compliance department headed by Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Officer. The department which is independent
and separate from Internal Audit function has the authority to act without interference from business line management. In addition, to ensure
compliance with the regulatory requirements the Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Officer reports directly to the Audit and Compliance Committee
(administratively to CEO) and has full access to the Board of Directors and Senior Management.

The Company maintains an approved Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Policy, which, amongst others contains Customer Due Diligence measures,
procedures for identifying and reporting suspicious transactions, an annual awareness program for staff training, documentation and record keeping
requirements. The Internal and External Auditors regularly carry out an independent review of the implementation of Anti Money Laundering policies and
procedures as laid down in the Central Bank of Bahrain rulebook and submits the reports to the Board of Directors and to the Central Bank of Bahrain.
Company endeavors to address and rectify all the implementation of shortfalls identified in the report.

The Company’s Legal and Compliance department updates the Audit & Compliance Committee at periodical interval of all significant changes in applicable
regulations. The department is in the process of implementing E-KYC applications as mandated by the Central Bank of Bahrain to ease the process of
verifying the identify of customers electronically as part of Financial Crime policy requirements. In addition, the department also ensures complying
with Personal Data Protection Law of Bahrain particularly protecting the customer’s personal data collected. During the year ESG Framework has been
formalized as part of the Corporate Governance manual and the first ESG report published as part of the 2022 Annual Report. The amended Corporate
Governance manual also incorporated the various directives issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain relating to Corporate Governance Code.

During the year the Company has imparted anti-money laundering awareness and training to its new employees in co-ordination with the HR department
as required by the rulebook of the Central Bank of Bahrain. Moreover, for existing employees such as those occupying positions in business lines and
who are in constant contact with customers were also mandated to attend the anti-money laundering course to ensure that the employees are aware
of their obligations under the Anti-Money laundering and Personal Data Protection Law of Bahrain.

Moreover, the department regularly review and updates the internal procedures and policies within the Company and ensures that it company with the
applicable regulations.

8.3 Conflict of Interest Policy

The Board has also approved the policy for dealing with situations involving ‘Conflict of Interest’ of Directors. In the event of the Board or its Committees
considering any issues involving Conflict of Interest of Directors, the decisions are taken by the full Board / Committees. The concerned Director abstains
from the discussion / voting process and leaves the meeting room during such discussion. These events are recorded in the Board / Committees
proceedings. The Directors are required to inform the entire Board of Conflicts of Interest (potential or otherwise) in their activities with,and commitments
to, other organizations as they arise and abstain from voting on the matter. This disclosure includes all material facts in the case of a contract or
transaction involving the Director. Further, such conflict-of-interest transactions are placed before the Shareholders for their approval and included as
an agenda item of Annual General Meeting.

During 2022, the Board discussed a topic with respect to include one of the executives in the company’s LTI scheme that is related to the Chairman. The
Chairman has left the meeting during this discussion.
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8.4 Whistle Blowing Policy
The Board has reviewed and approved the whistle blowing policy with designated officials to whom the employee can approach. The policy provides
adequate protection to the employees for any reports in good faith. The Board's Audit & Compliance Committee oversees this policy.

8.5 Policy on Employment of Relatives
In order to maintain the integrity of the Audit / Control and Management Systems, the employment of candidates up to Grade Three relatives of existing
employee(s) is prohibited.

This policy is a part of the approved HR Policy.

8.6 Fines and Penalties
There were no financial penalties incurred to any regulatory or governmental agencies during the year.

8.7 Communication

The Company has a clear policy in relation to its communication with its stakeholders such as shareholders, employees, customers, government bodies,
regulators, and society. Shareholders are invited by the Chairman of the Board to attend the Annual General Meeting in the presence of the Chairman
and other directors including the Executive Committee Chairman, the Audit & Compliance Committee Chairman, the NRESG Committee Chairman,
the Risk Committee Chairman and the External Auditors, who are available to answer any questions raised by shareholders or media representatives
with regard to the operations and performance of the Company. Additionally, the Company is cognizant and fully aware of its regulatory and statutory
obligations regarding dissemination of information to its stakeholders. Without prejudice to the disclosure standards, guidelines on key persons and
other requirements of the relevant statutory bodies, financial and non-financial information is provided by the Company on all events that merit
announcement, either on its website: www.gigbh.com or through local newspapers or through Bahrain Bourse or by other means of communication. The
financials and annual reports of the Company are made available on the Company’s website.
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7. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Legal

Secretary Board of
to the Board Directors
NR & ESG Executive Risk Audit & Compliance
Committee Committee Committee Comnmittee
Chief Executive
Officer
777777777777777 Risk 4
Management Internal Audit
fffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff Compliance -,
Chief General
Operating Manager
Officer - Kuwait
Chief Chief Chief Chief
Investment Financial Underwriting Underwriting
Officer Officer Officer - Bahrain Officer - Kuwait
Digital Motor HR & Admin Actuarial
Transformation o Unit
The above organization structure was approved by the Board during its meeting held on 17 February 2022.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC)

Report on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company BSC. (“the Company”) and its subsidiary
(together “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statements of
profit or loss, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Kingdom of Bahrain, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter How the key audit matter was addressed in the audit

Liabilities for claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR

Insurance liabilities of the Group include liability for claims
Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR). Management is required
to make an estimate for the Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
claims for all lines of business. This estimate is calculated based
on various assumptions and projections and using the history
of the frequency and severity of previously reported claims.

The calculation of the IBNR reserves is complex and require technical
input from a qualified actuary. All estimates by their nature require
significant judgement and there is a risk that any change in the
assumptions used in the calculations may have a significant impact
on the reserves calculation and ultimately the reported profits.

The IBNR reserves calculation is outsourced to a third party
actuarial firm which is approved by the Central Bank of Bahrain.

Refer to note 6 to the financial statements for significant estimates
and assumptions used in the determination of IBNR reserves, note
4 for significant accounting policies pertaining to IBNR reserves
and note 11 for details of IBNR reserves as of 31 December
2022.

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

« Performed a walkthrough of the claims and reserving processes,
to confirm our understanding of the flow of transactions relating
to paid claims, outstanding claims and the IBNR reserves; and

« Involved our internal specialists to assess the reasonableness of
the methodology and key assumptions used in calculating the
IBNR reserves.

In addition to the above we have performed procedures to
assess the completeness and accuracy of the data included
in the IBNR reserve calculation which includes a reconciliation
between the claims paid and outstanding data recorded in the
policy administration systems and the data used in the actuarial
calculations.
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Report on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Other information included in the Group’s 2022 Annual Report
Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 2022 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we obtained the Directors report which forms
part of the annual report, and the remaining sections of the annual report are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior
to the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and
for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board
of Directors.

.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC) (Continued)

Report on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Legal and Other Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Volume 3 of Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) Rule Book, we report that:

a. the Group has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated financial statements are in agreement therewith;

b. the financial information contained in the Directors Report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements;

c. We are not aware of any violations of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law, the CBB
Rule Book (Volume 3 and applicable provisions of Volume 6) and CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of the
Bahrain Bourse or the terms of the Company’s memorandum and articles of association during the year ended 31 December 2022 that might have
had a material adverse effect on the business of the Group or on its consolidated financial position; and

d. satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our requests.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kazim Merchant.

Emmt t

Ernst & Young

Partner’s registration no. 244
28" February 2023

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note BD '000 BD '000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 7 53,399 49418
Statutory deposits 8 3,380 4771
Insurance receivables 9 36,928 28920
Deferred acquisition costs 10 2,211 2038
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 11 70,355 100,451
Reinsurers' share of mathematical reserves 53 3,045
Investments 12 37,208 37,273
Investment in an associate 13 319 309
Investment property 14 2,193 2,148
Property and equipment 15 3,751 3878
Right of use assets 16 227 112
TOTAL ASSETS 210,024 232,363
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Insurance liabilities 11 115,674 138,662
Mathematical reserves 3,674 6,289
Unearned commissions 17 2,949 2841
Due to participants 1,259 856
Payables and accrued liabilities
Insurance and reinsurance companies 25,430 25854
Policyholders 4,903 4615
Others 18 11,843 9,724
Lease liabilities 16 242 129
Total liabilities 165,974 188,970
Equity
Share capital 19 15,000 15,000
Treasury shares 19 (165) (165)
Share premium 19 4,362 4362
Statutory reserve 19 5,403 4933
General reserve 19 1,358 1358
Investments fair value reserve 1,573 2638
Currency translation reserve (1,197) (1,075)
Retained earnings 15,696 14,406
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 42,030 41,457
Non-controlling interests 2,020 1936
Total equity 44,050 43393
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 210,024 232,363
Mr. Murad Ali Murad Mr. Hasan Mohamed Zainalabedin Dr. Abdulla Sultan
Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note BD '000 BD '000
Gross premiums 20 104,262 92,719
Reinsurers' share of gross premiums 11 (62,321) (54,945)
Retained premiums 41,941 37,774
Unearned premiums adjustment - gross (3,071) 1,358
Unearned premiums adjustment - reinsurance 356 (2,468)
Net premiums 39,226 36,664
Gross claims paid 11 (49,978) (43649)
Reinsurers' share of claims paid 11 25,364 22250
Outstanding claims adjustment - gross 25,273 9,309
Outstanding claims adjustment - reinsurance (29,772) (12,889)
Net claims (29,113) (24,979)
Transfer to family takaful technical reserve (378) (740)
General and administration expenses 21 (7,437) (7,412)
Amortisation of acquisition costs 10 (4,319) (3,982)
Fee and commission income 22 5,832 4915
(6,302) (7,219)
Underwriting profit 3,811 4466
Investment income - net 23 3,019 1,760
Share of results of an associate 13 29 29
Corporate expenses (1,487) (1,441)
Other income 24 949 1,094
Other expenses 24 (691) (915)
1,819 527
Profit including participants’ share 5,630 4993
Less: Participants’ share 701 672
Profit for the year 4,929 4321
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent 4,748 4152
Non-controlling interests 181 169
4,929 4321
Basic and diluted earnings per share 25 32 Fils 28 Fils
Mr. Murad Ali Murad Mr. Hasan Mohamed Zainalabedin Dr. Abdulla Sultan
Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

BD '000 BD '000
Profit for the year 4,929 4321
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
consolidated statement of profit or loss in subsequent years:
Available-for-sale investments:
Fair value changes arising during the year (737) (316)
Recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal / impairment (346) 132
(1,083) (184)
Currency translation differences (122) 15
Net other comprehensive loss for the year to be reclassified to the consolidated statement (1,205) (169)
of profit or loss in subsequent years D
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 3,724 4152
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent 3,561 3986
Non-controlling interests 163 166
3,724 4152
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note BD '000 BD '000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Premiums received net of commission 97,561 95328
Paid to insurance and reinsurance companies (61,749) (55,404)
Claims paid (49,541) (43,725)
Claims recovered 25,092 22999
General and administrative expenses paid (8,520) (6,093)
Interest and other payments 411 (296)
Statutory deposits 1,391 822
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,645 13631
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends and interest received 3,616 3025
Proceeds from sale of investments 7,887 3,707
Payments for investments purchased (8,883) (a7,721)
Investment in an associate 19 76
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 16 29
Purchase of property and equipment (259) (185)
Bank deposits with maturities of more than three months (10,196) 8,707
Net cash flows used in investing activities (7,800) (2,362)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividend paid (3,065) (2,213)
Cash flows used in financing activity (3,065) (2,213)
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,220) 9,056
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 35,063 26,007
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 7 28,843 35,063
COMPRISING:
CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
Cash and balance in current accounts 15,752 21437
Bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less 13,091 13,626
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28,843 35063
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months 24,556 14,355
i i T i — 1 sam s

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021

Equity
Investments  Currency attributable to Non-
Share Treasury Share Statutory General fair value translation Retained shareholders  Controlling
capital shares  premium reserve  reserve reserve reserve earnings  of the Parent interests Total
BD'000 BD'000 BD'000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD'000  BD'000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Balance at 1 January 2022 15,000 (165) 4362 4933 1,358 2638 (1,075) 14,406 41,457 1936 43393
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 4748 4,748 181 4929
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - (1,083) (122) - (1,205) - (1,205)
Non-controlling interests’ share of . B . . . 18 B . 18 (18) B
other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive (loss) / income - - - - - (1,065) (122) 4748 3,561 163 3724
Dividend for the year 2021 (note 19) - - - - - - - (2,988) (2,988) (77)  (3,065)
Repurchase of minority interest shares - - - - - - - - - ) (@)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 470 - - - (470) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 15,000 (165) 4,362 5,403 1,358 1,573 (1,197) 15,696 42,030 2,020 44,050
Balance at 1 January 2021 14,300 (162) 4362 4,508 1,358 2,819 (1,090) 13,512 39,607 1847 41,454
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 4152 4152 169 4321
Other comprehensive income / (Loss) - - - - - (184) 15 - (169) - (169)
Non-controlling interests> share of
- - - - - - 3 - - 3 3) -
other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income / (loss) - - - - - (181) 15 4152 3986 166 4152
Dividend for the year 2020 (note 19) = = = = = = = (2136) (2136) 7)) (2213)
Bonus Shares 700 3) - - - - - (697) - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 425 - - - (425) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 15,000 (165) 4,362 4933 1,358 2,638 (1,075) 14,406 41,457 1936 43393
The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 315t December 2022

1 INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company BSC. (“the Company”) was formed pursuant to Amiri Decree 3 of 1975 under commercial registration number 4745
and is listed on the stock exchanges of the Kingdom of Bahrain and the State of Kuwait. The registered office of the Company is at BKIC Tower 2775,
Road 2835, Seef District 428, Kingdom of Bahrain. The Company and it's subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide general insurance, takaful and related
products and services.

The Group primarily conducts general insurance business through its head office and branches in the Kingdom of Bahrain (the “Head Office”) and a branch
office in the State of Kuwait (the ‘Kuwait Branch”).

The majority shareholder of the Group is Gulf Insurance Group K.SC, a listed entity registered and incorporated in the State of Kuwait. The ultimate
holding company is Kuwait Projects Company Holding K.S.C. (), a listed entity registered and incorporated in the State of Kuwait.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28
February 2023.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the relevant
provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the Insurance Regulations contained in Volume 3 and applicable provisions of Volume 6 of the
Central Bank of Bahrain's (CBB) rulebook, CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse and the
Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law 2006.

Accounting convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the measurement at fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

Functional currency
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Bahraini Dinars (BD) which is the functional currency of the Group and are rounded to the
nearest BD thousands (BD ‘000) except when otherwise indicated.

3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2022. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee),
= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 315t December 2022

3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCl) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
consolidated statements of the subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other
components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

The following is the subsidiary of the Group:

Name of the subsidiary Country of incorporation Effective ownership Principal activity
2022 2021
Takaful International Company BS.C. Bahrain 81.9% 819% The principal activity of

Takaful is to manage the
General and Family takaful
activities and investments
by adopting wakala and
mudaraba models respec-
tively, on behalf of the
participants in accordance
with the Islamic Shari'a
principles.

Investment in an associate
The Group's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognised
directly in the other comprehensive income of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
other comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent
of the interest in the associate.

The share of profits or losses from associates is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This is the profit or loss attributable
to equity holders of the associate and therefore is profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring
the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference

between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year and the following new standards and amendments
which became effective from 1 January 2022:

Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to IAS 37
In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or
loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework. The amendments are intended
to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The Board also added an exception
to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be affected by replacing the reference
to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs
of producing those items, in profit or loss.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. There is no similar amendment proposed for IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any significant effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of investment
property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (depreciation for buildings based on an
estimated useful life of 25 years using the straight-line method) and accumulated impairment. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Investment property is derecognised when either it is disposed off or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of derecognition. The amount of consideration to be included in the gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of investment property is determined in accordance with the requirements for determining the transaction price in IFRS 15.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to property and
equipment, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the carrying value at the date of change in use. If property and equipment become investment
property, the Group account for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts in which the Group [the insurer] has accepted significant insurance risk from another party [the policyholder]
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event [the insured event] adversely affects the policyholder. As a general
guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract
for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank current accounts and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or
less.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and are measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The
carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Deferred acquisition costs
Those direct and indirect costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or renewing of insurance contracts are deferred to the extent
that these costs are recoverable out of future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned. The reinsurers’ share of deferred
acquisition costs is amortised on the same basis used in the calculation of gross unearned premiums. Amortisation is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date which is the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Investments
The Group classifies its investments into held-to-maturity and available-for-sale categories. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
on initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including directly attributable transaction costs.

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold until maturity. These investments are initially recognised at fair value, being the consideration paid for the acquisition
of the investment including transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition. After initial measurement these are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. Interest income from held-to-maturity investments are recognised on an accruals
basis, using the effective yield method and included under investment income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale. These investments are initially recorded
at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial measurement these are remeasured at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are reported as a separate
component in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised or the investment is determined to be impaired. On derecognition or
impairment, the cumulative fair value gains and losses previously reported in other comprehensive income are transferred to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Dividend income on available for sale investments is included under investment income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, including owner-occupied property, is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Replacement or major inspection costs are capitalised when incurred and if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The assets' residual values and useful lives and method are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each financial year end.

Impairment reviews are performed when there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Leases
All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:

« Leases of low value assets;
« Leases with a term of 12 months or less

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined
by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in which case the Group's incremental
borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend
on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease
term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

« amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
« the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonably certain to assess that option;
« any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of the termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and increased for:

« lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;
- initial direct costs incurred; and
- the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove or restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced
for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic
life of the asset if, in rare circumstances, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over
the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount rate that applied on lease commencement. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments, dependent on a rate or index, is revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to
the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature of the modification:

- if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional
rights-of-use obtained, the madification is accounted for as a separate lease in accordance with the above policy;

- in all other cases where the renegotiation increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional
assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount; and

- if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced
by the same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

For contracts that both convey a right to the Group to use an identified asset and require services to be provided to the Group by the lessor, the Group
has elected to account for the entire contract as a lease, i.e. it does allocate any amount of the contractual payments to, and account separately for, any
services provided by the supplier as part of the contract.

The Group leases a number of properties in the countries from which it operates. The Group's lease payments are fixed over the lease terms and are
therefore not sensitive to uplifts due to variable lease payments.

Foreign currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Bahraini Dinars which is the functional currency of the Group. The Group's Kuwait office, however
uses the Kuwaiti Dinar as its functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the
initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. All foreign exchange differences are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
for differences relating to items where gains or losses are recognised directly in equity, in which case the gain or loss is recognised in equity.

The assets and liabilities of the Kuwait branch are translated into Bahraini Dinars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the consolidated statement of
financial position date and the consolidated statement of profit or loss is translated at average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are taken directly to ‘currency translation reserve’ a separate component of equity.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from equity and accounted for at weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Such gains or losses are
recorded in equity.

Dividends on share capital
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Group's shareholders. Interim
dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the consolidated statement of financial position date are dealt with as an event after the reporting
period.

Revenue recognition

Gross premiums

Gross premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period
and are recognised on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums receivable
in respect of business written in prior accounting periods. Premiums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates
from underwriting or past experience and are included in premiums written.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the consolidated statement of financial
position date. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums and is calculated as follows:

- by the 1/365th method for all annual policies, except for marine cargo business;

- at 25% of gross premiums and reinsurance cessions for marine cargo business. This approximation method is used because marine cargo policies
cover variable periods shorter than one year, in order to spread the premiums earned over the tenure of the insurance policies; and

- The provision for unearned contributions represents contributions received for risks that have not yet expired. The reserve is matched with the
contributions earned and released.

Reinsurance premiums

Gross reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered into during the period and
are recognised on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the consolidated statement of
financial position date. The proportions attributable to subsequent periods are deferred and are determined on the same basis used in the calculation
of gross unearned premiums.

Fee and commission income

Policyholders are charged for policy administration services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period
in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods then they are deferred and amortised on the same
basis used in the calculation of gross unearned premiums.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective interest rate
method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as income when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.

Government grants

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the entity with no future related costs shall be recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Claims
Claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant contracts.

Reinsurance commissions
Commissions receivable on outward reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised over the term of the expected premiums payable.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated
with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.
Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another
party.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting
year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets that the
Group may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expense is not offset in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss unless required or permitted by any accounting standard
or interpretation.

Fair value of financial instruments
The Group measures financial instruments such as available for sale investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset for
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BSC) Annual Report 2022



At 315t December 2022
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated and separate financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated and separate financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each consolidated and separate statements of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the loss is recorded in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each consolidated
and separate statements of financial position date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income, is transferred from other comprehensive
income to the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not
recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale are reversed through the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss if the increase in the fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment losses were recognised in the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Group'’s continuing involvement in the asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecoghnition of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Insurance liabilities
Insurance liabilities comprise outstanding claims and unearned premiums.

Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the consolidated statement of financial position
date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays
can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty
at the consolidated statement of financial position date. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or
catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

The Group generally estimates its Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims based on previous experience at the reporting date and includes it as part
of the actuarial provisions. Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date, and the settlements and provisions for the following year, is
included in profit or loss attributable to participants for that period.

Unearned premiums
The provision for unearned premiums represents premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. The reserve is matched with the premiums
earned and released.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date the Group reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess
of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows
after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant technical provisions. If these estimates show that
the carrying amount of the unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate the deficiency is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to all employees (expatriates and locals) in accordance with the relevant regulations. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salaries and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment based on the notional amount payable if all employees had left at the consolidated
statement of financial position date.

With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Social Insurance Organisation calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries in accordance with the relevant regulations. The Group's obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets in the subsidiaries not attributable to the Group's equity shareholders. Any
change in the Group’s ownership interest in the subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Family takaful
Family takaful technical reserves represent the present value of future benefit obligations in respect of family takaful contracts in force at the statement
of financial position date. The reserve consists of two types of funds namely protection takaful and savings takaful.

The protection takaful and savings takaful reserve is determined annually by the Group’s appointed actuary. Reserves for individual family takaful

contracts are calculated on a prospective method. The liabilities are valued using discounted cash flow (DCF) with a discount rate of 4% per annum
(2021: 4% per annum).
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Family takaful (continued)

Maturity and survival benefits are charged against the technical reserve when due. Encashment and surrenders are accounted for when paid or when
cover ceases. Death and disability claims are accounted for when notified.

Zakah

Zakah base is calculated using the ‘Net Invested Funds’ method of calculating Zakah base. The components used in the computation of Zakah are share
capital, statutory reserve, general reserves and retained earnings and property and equipment. The basis of computation is approved by the Shari'a
Supervisory Board and the amounts payable are notified to the shareholders.

5 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group's consolidated and separate financial statements are listed below. The
Group intends to adopt those standards (where applicable) when they become effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in
2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (ie, life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful
and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies,
IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model,
supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) -
- A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted,
provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date together with IFRS 9. The Group expects that the new standard will result in significant changes to the accounting policies for
insurance contract liabilities of the Group and is likely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial performance and total equity together
with presentation and disclosure.

Transition
Retrospective application is required, however, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is
required to choose either a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach.

Presentation and disclosures
The Group expects that the new standard will result in a change to the accounting policies for insurance contracts and reinsurance, together with
amendments to presentation and disclosures.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In September 2016, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that addressed the accounting consequences of the application
of IFRS 9 to insurers prior to implementing IFRS 17. The amendments introduced two options for insurers: the deferral approach and the overlay
approach. The deferral approach provides an entity; if eligible, with a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an
entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur before the new insurance contracts standard
is applied.The Group has determined that it is eligible for the temporary exemption option. The eligibility conclusion is based on an analysis of the
percentage of the total carrying amount of liabilities connected with insurance activities relative to the total carrying amount of all liabilities, which
indicates the Group activities are predominantly connected with insurance. As a result, the Group has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS
9 until the effective date of the new insurance contracts standard, as mentioned above with the IASB proposal. The amendments permitting the
temporary exemption are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Disclosures related to financial assets required during
the deferral period are included in the Group financial statements. The IASB, following a recommendation of its Staff, decided to extend the expiry
of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, in order to enable qualifying insurers to
adopt IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 simultaneously.
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5 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3
Transition
The Group plans to adopt IFRS 9 using a modified retrospectic approaach and therefore shall not restate the comparative financial statements.

Presentation and disclosures
The Group expects that the new standard will result in a change to the accounting policies for Financial assets, together with amendments to
presentation and disclosures.

Impact

The Group has put implementation plans in place for the introduction of IFRS 17 & IFRS 9 and has already approved key accounting methodologies
to support the transition to the new standards. Moreover, the Group has also performed a series of ‘dry runs’ ahead of the effective date of 1 January
2023. The Group is therefore, in the advanced stages of implementation of IFRS 17 & IFRS 9.

However, management needs more time for preparation and finalisation of the granular yearend data required for generating results and therefore
due to the time limitation a reasonable estimate of the financial impacts of the adoption of this standard have not yet been finalized by management.

In addition to the above, there are certain new standards and amendments to accounting and reporting standards, that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group’s
operations and are, therefore, not detailed in this consolidated financial statements.

6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future. The most significant uses of judgements and estimates are as follows:

Judgements

Classification of investments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as a held
to maturity investment or an available-for-sale investment. Investments are classified as held to maturity if the investment has fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed maturity and for which the Group has the intent and ability to hold to maturity. All other investments are classified as available-
for-sale.

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Group has the resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Estimates and assumptions
The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Group’s most critical accounting estimate. There are
several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in estimating the liability that the Group will ultimately pay for such claims, The provision for
claims incurred but not reported is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial
position date, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the consolidated statement of financial position date.

All insurance contracts are subject to a liability adequacy test, as is explained in the accounting policy for insurance liabilities above.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale quoted and unquoted equity securities and managed funds are impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. The Group treats ‘significant’ as 30% and ‘prolonged’ as twelve months, subject to a
minimum decline of 15% in the market price. Where fair values are not available, the recoverable amount of such investment is estimated to test for
impairment. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other factors, the normal volatility in share price, evidence of deterioration in the
financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance and operating and financing cash flows.
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6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment losses on held-to-maturity

The Group reviews its individually significant held-to-maturity investments at each consolidated statement of financial position date to assess whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In particular, management judgement is required in the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance.

Impairment losses on receivables

The Group assesses receivables that are individually significant and receivables included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
for impairment. Receivables that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status being indicative of the inability to pay all amounts due as per contractual terms.

7 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Cash and bank current accounts 15,752 21,437
Bank deposits with original maturities 13,091 13,626
of three months or less
Cash and cash equivalents 28,843 35,063
Bank deposits with original maturities of
more than three months 24,556 14355
Cash and balances with banks 53,399 49418

The bank deposits earn effective interest rates ranging from 3.75%-5.85% per annum (2021: 0.18%-3.00% per annum) and amounted to BD 1,151
thousand (2021: BD 962 thousand).

The current account balances with banks are non-interest bearing.

8 STATUTORY DEPOSITS

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Kingdom of Bahrain 250 250
State of Kuwait 3,130 4521
3,380 4,771

Kingdom of Bahrain

Under the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law of 2006, all insurance companies operating in the Kingdom of Bahrain must maintain
deposits with a retail bank licensed to do business in Bahrain. Such deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn
except with the prior approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain.

State of Kuwait
Deposits are required to be placed with Kuwaiti banks in compliance with the regulations of the Kuwaiti Ministry of Commerce and Industry. The deposits,
which are based on prior year gross premiums of the Kuwait Branch, are of a revolving nature.

A statutory deposit of BD 3,130 thousand (2021: BD 4,521 thousand) is pledged as security for a regulatory guarantee issued by a bank in favour of
the Ministry of Commerce and Industry of the State of Kuwait.
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9 INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

2022 2021

BD'000 BD ‘000

Policyholders 32,598 26,032
Insurance and reinsurance companies 4,156 4931
Allowance for impairment (3,924) (3967)
32,830 26,996

Other 4,098 1924
36,928 28920

As at 31 December 2022, gross insurance receivables amounting to BD 4,613 thousand (2021: BD 4,260 thousand) for the group were impaired.
Movements in the allowance for impairment of insurance receivables were as follows:

Allowance for impairment 2022 2021

BD'000 BD ‘000
At 1 January 3,967 3,025
Written off during the year (589) (a57)
Charge for the year 559 1,099
Foreign exchange adjustment (13) -
At 31 December 3,924 3967

At 31 December, the ageing of insurance receivables was as follows:

Past due but not impaired Impaired
Total  Neither past due Less than 120 121 to180days 181 to 365 days More than 365
BD ‘000 nor impaired days BD ‘000 BD ‘000 days
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
2022 32,830 19,480 5,537 1,584 5,029 1,200
2021 26,996 4,456 15,198 1,945 4,565 832

10 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

2022 2021

BD'000 BD ‘000

At 1 January 2,038 1707

Acquisition costs 4,492 4313

Amortisation for the year (4,319) (3982)

At 31 December 2,211 2,038
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11 INSURANCE LIABILITIES

2022 2021
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Outstanding claims 62,896 (36,754) 26,142 88,788 (67,091) 21,697
Unearned premiums 52,430 (33,601) 18,829 49523 (33,360) 16,163
Premium deficiency
reserve 348 - 348 351 - 351
115,674 (70,355) 45,319 138662 (100,451) 38211
(a) Outstanding claims
Movement in outstanding claims
2022 2021
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000
At 1 January
Reported claims 69,615 (58,824) 10,791 83,663 (74,013) 9650
IBNR claims 19,173 (8,267) 10,906 14227 (5,769) 8458
88,788 (67,091) 21,697 97,890 (79,782) 18,108
Incurred during the
year 24,705 4,408 29,113 34340 (9361) 24,979
(Paid) / recovered
during the year (49,978) 25,364 (24,614) (43649) 22,250 (21,399)
Foreign exchange
adjustment (619) 565 (54) 207 (198) 9
At 31 December 62,896 (36,754) 26,142 88,788 (67,091) 21697
At 31 December
Reported claims 37,168 (23,637) 13,531 69,615 (58824) 10,791
IBNR claims 25,728 (13,117) 12,611 19173 (8°267) 10,906
62,896 (36,754) 26,142 88,788 (67,091) 21,697
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11 INSURANCE LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Unearned premiums

2022 2021
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Net Gross share Net
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000
At 1 January 49,523 (33,360) 16,163 50,834 (35,794) 15,040
Premiums written
(ceded) 104,262 (62,321) 41,941 92,719 (54,945) 37,774
Premiums earned (101,191) 61,965 (39,226) (94,077) 57,413 (36,664)
Foreign exchange
adjustment (164) 115 (49) 47 (34 i3
At 31 December 52,430 (33,601) 18,829 49523 (33,360) 16,163

Claims development - Group

The following tables show the estimate of cumulative incurred claims, including both reported claims and IBNR for each successive accident year at each
consolidated statement of financial position date, together with cumulative payments to date. The cumulative claims estimates and cumulative payments
are translated to the presentation currency at average exchange rates of the current financial year.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
BD‘000  BD'O00  BD'000  BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD'00O0  BD'O00  BD'000  BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Gross outstanding claims

At end of accident year 30998 31943 35886 85393 86461 36921 45289 41173 48,391 442,455
One year later 33,257 32,904 42126 87103 139504 40,013 45,040 41,892 = 461,839
Two years later 34082 34070 39512 86359 143853 41957 46937 - - 426,770
Three years later 34,605 33,253 39400 87242 139391 41,830 = = = 375,721
Four years later 34,305 353587 40007 86,359 113267 - - - - 307,275
Five years later 34614 33377 40124 85862 = - - = - 193,977
Six years later 34816 33,649 40,035 - - - - - - 108,500
Seven years later 34,885 33,450 - - - - - - - 68,335
Eight years later 34,797 - - - - - - - - 34,797
Current estimate of cumulative

claims incurred 34,797 33,450 40035 85862 113267 41,830 46,937 41892 48,391 486,461
Cumulative payments to date (34135) (32507) (39212) (847223) (110586) (38510) (32,785) (30001) (23,265) (425,224)

Liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 662 943 823 1,639 2,681 3320 14,152 11891 25,126 61,237

Liability in respect of years prior
to 2014 1,659

Total liability included in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 62,896
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11 INSURANCE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Claims development - Group (Continued)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD‘000 BD‘000  BD ‘000 BD ‘000  BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Net outstanding claims
At end of accident year 16554 15940 18792 16201 22756 22105 19786 23309 28,339 183,782
One year later 16753 16689 21088 17329 23697 22614 22058 23881 - 164,109
Two years later 17365 17967 21,280 17655 24,483 23432 22198 - - 144,380
Three years later 18118 17,691 21458 18278 24495 23,380 - - - 123,420
Four years later 17,886 17,867 21933 18,383 24,530 = = = = 100,599
Five years later 18086 17,804 22157 18463 = = - = - 76,510
Six years later 18296 17961 22,031 = - - = = - 58,288
Seven years later 18370 17,996 - - - - - - - 36,366
Eight years later 18302 - - - - - - - - 18,302
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 18302 17996 22031 18463 24530 23380 22198 23881 28339 199,120
Cumulative payments to date (17832) (17467) (21632) (17555) (23556) (21,923) (17,287) (19,747) (17,166) (174,165)

Liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 470 529 399 908 974 1457 4911 4134 11,173 24,955

Liability in respect of years prior
to 2014 1,187

Total liability included in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 26,142
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12 INVESTMENTS

2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Available-for-sale
Quoted equity investments 8,874 6,959
Quoted bond investments 20,846 22919
Unquoted equity investments 1,415 1,445
Other managed funds 272 284
31,407 31,607

Held-to-maturity
Fixed rate bonds 5,999 5864
5,999 5864
Allowance for impairment (198) (198)
5,801 5,666
37,208 37,273
Movement in available-for-sale investments 2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Opening balance 31,607 19926
Addition during the year 7,330 15957
Disposals during the year (5,675) (3635)
Realised fair value gains on sale of investments 223 (952)
Impairment loss for the year (432) (602)
Amortization 35 79
Unrealised fair value losses recognised (2,060) (322)
Closing balance 31,407 31,607

121 During the year impairment loss amounting to BD 432 thousand (2021: BD 602 thousand) relating to quoted investments and other managed
funds was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

122 As at 31 December 2022, the gross amount of impaired held-to-maturity investments was BD 198 thousand (2021: BD 198 thousand). No
impairment loss has been recognised related to held to maturity investments in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group (2021
BD nil thousand).
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group has a 33.5% interest in Health 360 Ancillary Services W.L.L which is engaged in the services of processing claims in connection with health

insurance coverage offered or provided by insurance firms.

The movements in number of shares acquired in the associate is as follows:

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

At 1 January 309 261
Purchase of shares - 110
Disposal of shares = (51)
Loss on disposal of shares = (14
Dividends received (19) (40)
Share of results 29 43
At 31 December 319 309

The associate is a limited liability Company and is not listed on any public exchange. Summarised financial information of the associate, based on its
un-audited financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the financial statements are set out below:

2022 2021
Summarised financial position of the associate: BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Current assets 2,021 1620
Non-current assets 308 298
Current liabilities (1,282) (898)
Non-current liabilities (96) (96)
Equity (100%) 951 924
Proportion of the Group’s Ownership % 33.50% 33.50%
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 319 309
Carrying amount of investments in an associate 319 309
Group's share of an associate’s results 29 43

‘ 72 GIG Bahrain

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 315t December 2022

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2022 2021

BD '000 BD '000
Cost:
As at 1 January 2,190 1577
Transfers 274 613
At 31 December 2,464 2,190
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 42
Relating to transfers 194 6
Depreciation 35 33
As at 31 December 271 42
Carrying amount:
As at 31 December 2,193 2,148
Estimated useful lives 25 years 25 years

The fair value of the investment property of the Group is BD 2,945 thousand (2021: BD 2,172 thousand). Investment property was valued by independent
valuers using unobservable valuation inputs and are classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Group earned rental income from investment property amounted to BD 145 thousand (2021: BD 129 thousand). The Group incured direct operating
expenses amounting to BD 62 thousand (2021: BD 66 thousand).

The Group is exposed to risk arising from movements in properties and land prices. A 10% change in property prices will have effect of BD 219 thousand
(2021: 215 thousand) on the Group's consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Furniture and
buildings equipment Vehicles Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000 BD ‘000

Cost:
At 1 January 2022 5,421 3,823 49 9,293
Transfers (274) (8) = (282)
Additions during the year - 197 21 218
Writen off during the year - (1,948) - (1,948)
Disposals during the year - (325) (8) (333)
At 31 December 2022 5,147 1,739 62 6,948
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2022 1,844 3,522 49 5,415
Relating to transfers (194) - - (194)
Depreciation for the year 127 164 5 296
Writen off during the year - (1,948) - (1,948)
Relating to disposals - (364) (8) (372)
At 31 December 2022 1,777 1,374 46 3,197
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022 3,370 365 16 3,751
Estimated useful lives 25 years 3-10 years 4 years

Land and Furniture and

buildings equipment Vehicles Total

BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000 BD '000

Cost:
At 1 January 2021 6,034 3,669 73 9,776
Transfers (613) - - (613)
Additions during the year - 185 - 185
Disposals during the year - (31) (24) (55)
At 31 December 2021 5421 3,823 49 9,293
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2021 1,720 3,459 73 5,252
Relating to transfers 6) - - (6)
Depreciation for the year 130 94 - 224
Relating to disposals z (31) (24) (55)
At 31 December 2021 1,844 3,522 49 5,415
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2021 3,577 301 - 3,878
Estimated useful lives 25 years 3-10 years 4 years

‘ 74 GIG Bahrain

Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

At 315t December 2022

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Properties owned by the Group

Age of the
Name of the property Address Description Existing use Nature property
Building
Building 2775, Road 2835 measuring
BKIC Seef - Block - 428 6,591 square Operational Building on 10 years and
Tower Kingdom of Bahrain meters purpose freehold 11 months
Salmabad Building 1390, Road 426 Building
branch Salmabad 704 measuring Investment Building on
building Kingdom of Bahrain 612 square purpose freehold 21 years
Building Operational
BKIC Building 680, Road 2811 measuring purpose /
(Former Takaful Seef - Block - 428 3,626 square Investment Building on
Head Office) Kingdom of Bahrain meters purposes freehold 17 years
Building
BKIC Building 2164, Road 437 measuring
(Former Takaful Salmabad 704 550 square Operational Building on
Salmabad branch) Kingdom of Bahrain meters purpose freehold 14 years

16 LEASES

The Group leases a number of properties in the countries in which it operates. The Group’s lease payments are fixed over the lease terms and are
therefore not sensitive to uplifts due to variable lease payments.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Right of use asset 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
16.1 Group Rented properties Total Rented properties Total
BD'000 BD'000 BD'000 BD'000
At 1 January 112 112 217 217
Additions during the year 239 239 106 106
Termination of lease during the year - - (73) (73)
Depreciation expense (124) (124) (138) (138)
At 31 December 227 227 112 112

Lease liabilities
2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
At 1 January 129 233
Addition during the year 239 105
Termination of lease during the year - (76)
Interest expense 15 10
Lease payments (141) (243)
At 31 December 242 129
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17 UNEARNED COMMISSIONS

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

At 1 January 2,841 2,282
Commission received 5,312 5025
Commission earned (note 22) (5,204) (4,466)
At 31 December 2,949 2841

18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES - OTHERS

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Due to garages, spare part suppliers and others 2,753 2,304
Provision for employees' leaving indemnities (18.1) 1,439 1,309
Accrued expenses 3,030 2,336
Premiums booked in advance 1,839 1858
Premium reserve deposits 470 410
Provision for leave pay 154 180
Advance claim recoveries 59 16
VAT payable 1,702 639
Other liabilities 397 672
11,843 9724

All of these liabilities are non-interest bearing and unsecured.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group employed 184 Bahrainis and 39 expatriates in Bahrain branches and 8 Kuwaitis and 44 expatriates (including 2 Bahraini) in its Kuwait Branch
at 31 December 2022 [2021: 163 Bahrainis and 45 expatriates in Bahrain branches and 9 Kuwaitis and 40 expatriates (including 1 Bahraini) in its Kuwait
Branch].

Pension rights (and other social benefits) for Bahraini employees are covered by the Social Insurance Organisation scheme to which employees and the
Group contributes a fixed percentage of salaries. The Group's contributions in respect of Bahraini employees amounted to BD 351 thousand (2021: BD
227 thousand).

Pension rights (and other social benefits) for Kuwaiti employees are covered by the Public Institute for Social Security scheme to which employees and
the Group contributes a fixed percentage of salaries. The Group's contributions in respect of Kuwaiti employees amounted to BD 13 thousand (2021:
BD 10 thousand).

18.1 Provision for employees’ leaving indemnities

2022 2021

Group Group

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

At 1 January 1,309 1,386

Charge for the year 278 248

Paid during the year (148) (325)

At 31 December 1,439 1,309
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19 EQUITY AND RESERVES

Equity
2022 2021
BD '000 BD ‘000
Authorised share capital
200 million ordinary shares of 100 fils each
(2021: 200 million ordinary shares of 100 fils each) 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid share capital
150 million ordinary shares of 100 fils each (2021: 150 million ordinary shares of 100 fils each).
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Bahraini shareholders 30.55 3055 4,583 4583
Kuwaiti shareholders
Gulf Insurance Group K.SC. 56.12 5612 8,418 8418
Warba Insurance Company SAK. 13.33 1333 1,999 1999
100.00 100.00 15,000 15,000

(i)  Treasury shares represent 621,558 (2021: 621,558) shares. Out of this, nil treasury shares are acquired by the Group through Bonus shares
distribution in 2022 (2021: 30,878 were acquired by the Group through distribution of bonus shares).

(i)  Names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held in which they have an interest of 5% or more of outstanding
shares are as follows:

At 31 December 2022

Number of Percentage of total
Name of the shareholder Nationality shares  outstanding shares
Gulf Insurance Group K.SC. Kuwait 84,182,323 56.12
Warba Insurance Company SAK. Kuwait 19,999,997 13.33
BBK BSC. Bahrain 10,237,379 6.82

At 31 December 2021

Percentage of total

Name of the shareholder Nationality ~ Number of shares outstanding shares

Gulf Insurance Group K.SC. Kuwait 84,182,323 5612

Warba Insurance Company SAK. Kuwait 19,999,997 1333

BBK BSC. Bahrain 10,237,379 6.82
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19 EQUITY AND RESERVES (Continued)

(iii) Distribution schedule of equity shares is as follows:

At 31 December 2022

Number Number of Percentage of total
Categories of shares shareholders  outstanding shares
Less than 1% 28,783,174 3,676 19.19%
1% up to less than 5% 6,797,127 1 4.53%
5% up to less than 10% 10,237,379 1 6.83%
10% up to less than 20% 19,999,997 1 13.33%
20% and above 84,182,323 1 56.12%
Total 150,000,000 3,680 100.00%

At 31 December 2021

Number Number of Percentage of total
Categories of shares shareholders outstanding shares
Less than 1% 28783174 3,689 1919%
1% up to less than 5% 6,797,127 1 453%
5% up to less than 10% 10,237,379 1 6.83%
10% up to less than 20% 19999997 1 1333%
20% and above 84,182 323 1 56.12%
Total 150,000,000 3,693 100.00%

Share premium
The share premium is not available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and following
approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain.

Statutory reserve

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Insurance Regulations contained in Volume 3 of the Central Bank of Bahrain Rulebook,
10% of the profit for the year is to be transferred to a statutory reserve until such time as the reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The
reserve is not available for distribution except in such circumstances as stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and following approval of
the Central Bank of Bahrain.

As the statutory reserve does not exceed the minimum required limit of 50% of the paid up share capital therefore, transfer is made amounted to BD
370 thousand in 2022 (2021: BD 332 thousand).

General reserve
Appropriations to the general reserve are made as proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders. The reserve represents
retained earnings and is available for distribution subject to approval of the Central Bank of Bahrain.

Proposed appropriations
The Board of Directors, at a meeting held on 28 February 2023, recommended the following appropriations, which are subject to approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 March 2023.

2022 2021

BD '000 BD ‘000

- Cash dividend of 25 fils per share (2021: 20 fils per share) 3,734 2,988

- Transfer to statutory reserve 425 370
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20 GROSS PREMIUMS

2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Led by the Group - net of refunds 99,517 88,701
Led by other insurance companies - Group's share 4,745 4018
104,262 92,719
21 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Employee related costs 4,604 4520
Depreciation (note 15) 296 224
Other operating expenses 1,826 1,762
Other takaful expenses 711 906
7,437 7,412
22 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Commission income (note 17) 5,204 4,466
Policy and other fees 628 449
5,832 4915
23 INVESTMENT INCOME - NET
2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Interest income on:
Held-to-maturity investments 305 280
Balances with banks 1,151 963
Available-for-sale financial assets
Dividend income 555 416
Interest on AFS bonds 1,008 947
Gain on sale of investments 979 307
Amortization 39 79
Rental income on Investment property 145 129
4,182 3121
Impairment loss on investments (note 12) (432) (602)
Investment management expenses (708) (688)
Advisory fees (23) (71)
3,019 1,760
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24 OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Other income

Foreign exchange gain - 92
Profit on sale of assets 4 2
Miscellaneous income 38 13
Operating income 907 987
949 1,094
2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Other expenses
Provision for National Labour/ Support Tax and Zakat tax 47 59
Bank charges 84 57
Provision for doubtful debts 500 777
VAT expenses 25 11
Interest expense on premium reserve deposit 6 6
Foreign exchange loss 14 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 15 5
691 915

* Other takaful expenses of Takaful International Company BSC. are included in general and administration expenses as these expenses are related to
takaful participants.

25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the reporting date.

The income and share data used in the computation of earnings per share are as follows:

2022 2021
Profit for the year (BD - thousand) 4,748 4152
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, net of treasury shares 149,378,442 149,378,442
Earnings per share 32 Fils 28 Fils
The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive effects on earnings.
Other information 2022 2021
Proposed cash dividend per share (note 19) 25 Fils 20 Fils
Net asset value per share 280 Fils 276 Fils
Share price per Bahrain Bourse at 31 December 325 Fils 430 Fils
Price to earnings ratio at 31 December 10 times 15 times
Total market capitalisation at 31 December (BD - thousand) 48,548 64,233
i 80 GIG Bahrain Bahrain Kuwait Insurance Company (BS.C)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 315t December 2022

26 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At 31 December 2022, financial instruments have been classified for the purpose of measurement under IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ as follows:

Available- Held to Loans and

for-sale Maturity receivables Total

BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Cash and balances with banks - - 53,399 53,399
Statutory deposits - - 3,380 3,380
Insurance receivables - - 33,946 33,946
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
- Outstanding claims - Reported claims - - 23,637 23,637
Investments 31,407 5,801 - 37,208

31,407 5,801 114,362 151,570

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost
BD ‘000

Insurance liabilities
- Outstanding claims - Reported claims 37,516
Payables and accrued liabilities 39,181
Lease liabilities 242
76,939

At 31 December 2021, financial instruments have been classified for the purpose of measurement under IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ as follows:

Available- Held to Loans and

for-sale Maturity receivables Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Cash and balances with banks - - 49418 49418
Statutory deposits - - 4771 4771
Insurance receivables - - 28294 28294

Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
- Outstanding claims - Reported claims - - 58824 58824
Investments 31,607 5666 - 37273
31,607 5,666 141,307 178,580
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
BD ‘000

Insurance liabilities
- Outstanding claims - Reported claims 69,615
Payables and accrued liabilities 36,089
Lease liabilities 129
105,833
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27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Fair values of quoted securities are derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available. For unquoted securities, fair value is estimated
using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair value
of another instrument that is substantially the same; or other valuation models.

The fair values of the funds that are listed on active markets are determined by reference to their quoted bid prices. The fair values of unlisted funds
are based on net asset values which are determined by the fund manager using the quoted market prices of the underlying assets, if available, or other
acceptable methods such as a recent price paid by another investor or the market value of a comparable group.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly;,
and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Following are the fair value hierarchy level wise details of available-for-sale investments :

31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Available-for-sale investments
Quoted investments
Banking 12,828 - - 12,828
Infrastructure 1,389 - - 1,389
Industrial 4,079 - - 4,079
Communications 355 - - 355
Consumer Service 2,308 - - 2,308
Government 7,599 - - 7,599
Other sectors 1,162 - - 1,162
Unquoted equity investments
Insurance - - 1,373 1,373
Consumer Service - - 42 42
Other managed funds
Consumer Service - - 195 195
Industrial - - 77 77
29,720 - 1,687 31,607
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27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Following are the fair value hierarchy level wise details of available-for-sale investments:

31 December 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BD ‘000 BD '000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Available-for-sale investments
Quoted equities
Banking 11,929 - - 11,929
Infrastructure 1,547 - - 1,547
Industrial 4371 - - 4371
Communications 431 - - 431
Consumer Service 1,730 - - 1,730
Government 9124 = - 9124
Other sectors 746 - - 746
Unquoted equity investments
Insurance - - 1,380 1,380
Other Sector = = 65 65
Other managed funds
Consumer Service - - 189 189
Infrastructure - - 17 17
Industrial - - 43 43
Other sectors - - 35 35
29878 - 1,729 31,607

Reconciliation of movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value - Group and Company

Losses recognised in

At 1 January other comprehensive At 31 December
2022 income 2022
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Available-for-sale investments unquoted equity
investments and other managed funds 1,729 42) 1,687

At 1 January  Gains recognised in other At 31 December

2021 comprehensive income 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Available-for-sale investments unquoted equity
investments and other managed funds 1,587 142 1729

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value hierarchies, and no transfers into or out of
Level 3 fair value hierarchy (2021: No transfers).
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27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs to valuation - Available-for-sale investment in unquoted equity

A reasonably possible increase (decrease) in the key assumptions by 10% would result in a fair value (decrease) increase of (BD 169 thousand) BD
169 thousand [2021: (BD 173 thousand) BD 173 thousand] at the Group's level. The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying values at the reporting date.

In case of available-for-sale, the impairment charge in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group would depend on whether the decline is
significant or prolonged. An increase in the fair value would only impact equity (through other comprehensive income) and, would not have an effect on
the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group.

Carrying amount and fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances, statutory deposits, insurance receivables, reinsurers’ share of insurance
liabilities - reported claims, insurance liabilities - reported claims, payables to insurance and reinsurance companies, policyholders, other payables and
lease liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments. These financial instruments are classified
under level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

A majority of the Group’s held-to-maturity investments are in quasi-sovereign bonds. Following the impairment allowance recognised on certain of these
bonds, management has assessed that the fair values of held-to-maturity investments approximate their carrying amounts as at the reporting date. Fair
values of held-to-maturity investments are classified under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

28 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into departments based on the classes of insured risks. The reportable operating segments of the
Group are as follows:

- Fire and general offers insurance policies to cover various risks of fire, general accident and engineering, medical, group life and special contingency;
- Motor offers insurance policies to cover risks of motor third party, motor comprehensive and extended warranty; and

- Marine and aviation offers insurance policies to cover risks of marine cargo, marine hull and marine aviation..

- Family Takaful offers insurance policies to cover risks of group life, education, protection, savings etc.

Management monitors the underwriting results of the operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on underwriting profit. The following table presents of segment revenues,
measurement of segment profit for the year and their reconciliation to the Group’s income and profit for the year.

Fire and Marine and Family

general Motor aviation Takaful Total

BD '000 BD ‘000 BD '000 BD '000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums from external customers 78,501 21,721 2,863 1,177 104,262
Retained premiums 19,846 21,123 418 554 41,941
Net premiums 18,196 20,073 395 562 39,226
Fee and commission income 4,677 203 952 - 5,832
Segment revenue 22,873 20,276 1,347 562 45,058
Net claims 15,532 13,256 29 296 29,113
Transfer to family takaful technical reserve - - - 332 332
General and administrative expenses 3,408 3,667 330 32 7,437
Acquisition costs 2,351 1,761 118 89 4,319
Underwriting profit / (loss) 1,582 1,592 870 (233) 3,811
Unallocable income* 3,997
Unallocable expenses* (2,178)
Profit including participants> share 5,630
Less: Participants> share 701
Profit for the year 4,929

‘ 84 GIG Bahrain




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 315t December 2022

28 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Fire and Marine and Family

general Motor aviation Takaful Total

BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums from external customers 69,466 19913 1,996 1344 92,719
Retained premiums 17162 19336 336 940 37,774
Net premiums 16,025 19,365 331 943 36,664
Fee and commission income 4114 52 749 = 4915
Segment revenue 20,139 19417 1,080 943 41,579
Net claims / recoveries 12,611 12,158 8) 218 24979
Transfer to family takaful technical reserve - - - 740 740
General and administrative expenses 3,517 3,529 352 14 7,412
Acquisition costs 2,036 1,709 115 122 3982
Underwriting profit 1,975 2,021 621 (151) 4466
Unallocable income* 2,883
Unallocable expenses* (2,356)
Profit including participants' share 4993
Less: Participants' share 672
Profit for the year 4321

*Includes investment income - net, share of results of an associate and other income.
*Includes corporate expenses and other expenses.

The following table presents disclosure of segment assets:

Fire and Marine and Family Unallocable
general Motor aviation Takaful assets* Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Segment assets
2022 61,279 7,032 3,922 386 137,405 210,024
Segment assets
2021 93,288 6,361 2,512 3373 126,829 232,363
Fire and Marine and Family Unallocable
general Motor aviation Takaful liabilities™ Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Segment liabilities
2022 80,944 32,702 4,428 4,223 43,677 165,974
Segment liabilities
2021 109,486 28,700 2,852 6,754 41,178 188970

*Segments assets do not include cash and bank balances, statutory deposits, insurance receivables, investments, investment in an associate, investment
property, property and equipment, right of use asset and due from participants as these assets are managed on an integrated basis.

** Segment liabilities do not include payables to insurance and reinsurance companies, policyholders and other payables, due to participants and lease
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on an integrated basis.
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28 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Cash flows relating to segments are not disclosed separately as these are managed on an integrated basis.

Bahrain Kuwait Total

2022 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums from external customers* 77,195 27,067 104,262
Non-current assets™ 5,986 185 6,171
Bahrain Kuwait Total

2021 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums from external customers* 71,598 217121 92,719
Non-current assets* 6,095 43 6,138

*The gross premium information is based on the location of the customer.

* Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property and equipment, investment property and right of use asset and is based on the location of
the property and equipment.

29 RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments consist of financial assets and financial liabilities. The Group has no derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, deposits, receivables and investments. Financial liabilities include payables (to insurance and
reinsurance companies, policyholders and other parties). Accounting policies for financial assets and financial liabilities are set out in note 4.

The risks involved with financial instruments and the Group’s approach to managing such risks are discussed below:

a) Insurance risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the
very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The principal risks that the Group faces under such contracts is
the occurrence of the insured event and the severity of the reported claim. The Group's risk profile is improved by diversification of these risks of losses
to a large portfolio of contracts as a diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by an unexpected event in a single subset.

The Group principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: Marine, Motor and Fire and General Accident. Risks under these policies
usually cover twelve months. For Fire and General Accidents insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from accidents, climate changes, natural
disasters and terrorist activities. These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured type of risk insured or by industry.

Underwriting and retention policies and procedures and limits precisely regulate who is authorised and accountable for concluding insurance and
reinsurance contracts and on what conditions. Compliance with these guidelines is regularly checked and developments in the global, regional and local
markets are closely observed, reacting where necessary with appropriate measures that are translated without delay into underwriting guidelines if
required.

The primary risk control measure in respect of insurance risk is the transfer of the risks to third parties via reinsurance, The reinsurance business ceded
is placed on a proportional and non-proportional basis with retention limits varying by lines of business. The placements of reinsurance contracts are
diversified so that the Group is not dependent on a single reinsurer or a single reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, they do not, however, discharge the Group's liability as
the primary insurer and thus a credit risk exposure remains with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent that any reinsurer may be unable to meet
its obligations under such reinsurance arrangements. The Group minimises such credit risk by entering into reinsurance arrangements with reinsurers
having good credit ratings, which are reviewed on a regular basis. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract. Reserve risks are controlled by constantly monitoring the provisions for insurance claims that
have been submitted but not yet settled and by amending the provisions, if deemed necessary.

Concentration of insurance risk

The Group does not have any single insurance contract or a small number of related contracts that cover low frequency, high-severity risks such as
earthquakes, or insurance contracts covering risks for single incidents that expose the Group to multiple insurance risks. The Group has adequately
reinsured for insurance risks that may involve significant litigation. A 5% change in the average claims ratio will have no material impact on the statement
of profit or loss (2021: 5%). The geographical and segmental concentration of insurance risk is set out in note 27.
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group's principal transactions are carried out in Bahraini Dinars and Kuwaiti Dinars and its exposure to foreign exchange risk arises primarily because the
Kuwaiti Dinar is not pegged to the United States Dollar or Bahraini Dinar. The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange

rate risk at the statement of financial position date by categorising monetary assets and liabilities by major currencies.

Currency risk

31 December 2022
Bahraini Dinars Kuwaiti Dinars US Dollars Other Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 31,329 13,670 7,866 534 53,399
Statutory deposits 250 3,130 - - 3,380
Insurance receivables 13,366 3,868 19,694 - 36,928
Reinsurers' share of insurance
reserves - outstanding claims
- Reported claims 11,243 10,820 1,574 - 23,637
Investments 8,551 8,261 15,957 4,439 37,208
64,739 39,749 45,091 4,973 154,552
31 December 2022
Bahraini Dinars Kuwaiti Dinars US Dollars Other Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
LIABILITIES
Insurance liabilities - outstanding
claims - Reported claims 24,583 12,585 - - 37,168
Unearned commissions 1,227 1,603 119 - 2,949
Payables and accrued liabilities 28,554 8,101 5,521 - 42,176
Lease liabilities 86 156 - - 242
54,450 22,445 5,640 - 82,535
Net exposure 10,289 17,304 39,451 4,973 72,017
Currency risk
31 December 2021
Bahraini Dinars Kuwaiti Dinars US Dollars Other Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 30,234 8,409 10,194 581 49418
Statutory deposits 250 4521 - - 4771
Insurance receivables 11,747 4946 12,227 - 28920
Reinsurers’ share of insurance reserves -
outstanding claims - Reported claims 12,797 44851 1176 - 58824
Investments 7,229 7,306 18679 4,059 37273
62,257 70033 42276 4640 179,206
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
b) Currency risk (Continued)

31 December 2021

Bahraini Dinars Kuwaiti Dinars US Dollars Other Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
LIABILITIES
Insurance liabilities - outstanding
claims - Reported claims 23211 46,404 - - 69,615
Unearned commissions 1094 1628 119 - 2841
Payables and accrued liabilities 28340 7959 3894 - 40,193
Lease liabilities 111 18 - - 129
52756 56,009 4013 - 112,778
Net exposure 9501 14024 38263 4640 66,428

Currency risk - Company

A 5% movement in the Kuwaiti Dinar exchange rate against the Bahraini Dinar would impact consolidated statement of other comprehensive income by
BD 865 thousand (2021: BD 701 thousand).

c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the fair values of financial instruments. The
Group’s short-term deposits are at fixed interest rates and mature within six months. Investments in bonds consist of both fixed rate instruments and
have maturities ranging from 1 year to 10 years.

The Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

A 50 basis point change in the interest rates would impact the consolidated statement of profit or loss by BD 267 thousand (2021: BD 247 thousand).
d) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Group is exposed to price risk with
respect to its investments (listed and unlisted shares, bonds and managed funds). The geographical concentration of the Group's investments is set out

below:

Geographical concentration of investments

2022 2021

Group Group

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Bahrain 15,606 14548
UAE 3,302 2,873
Saudi Arabia 1,622 1637
Kuwait 9,712 8705
Qatar 2,178 1,966
Oman 2,766 6,357
Asia/BRIC 42 85
Other countries/global 1,980 1,102
37,208 37,273

The Group limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio, proactively monitoring the key factors that affect stock and bond market movements
and periodically analysing the operating and financial performance of investees.

The Group's equity investments comprise securities quoted on the stock exchanges in Bahrain, Kuwait, Saudi Arabia and UAE. A 5% change in the prices

of the equities, with all other variables held constant, would impact the Group’s equity by BD 444 thousand (2021: BD 325 thousand). There would be
no impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss as all equity investments are classified as available-for-sale.
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from
an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. Management monitors liquidity requirements on a regular basis and ensures that
sufficient funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise. The Group has sufficient liquidity and, therefore, does not resort to borrowings in
the normal course of business.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the assets and liabilities of the Group based on remaining undiscounted contractual obligations. As
the Group does not have any interest bearing liabilities, the totals in the table match the consolidated statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk
31 December 2022
One year or less More than one year No term Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks 53,399 - - 53,399
Statutory deposits - - 3,380 3,380
Insurance receivables 33,476 3,452 - 36,928
Deferred acquisition costs 2,211 - - 2,211
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 70,355 - - 70,355
Reinsurers' share of mathematical reserves 53 - - 53
Investments 26,636 10,572 - 37,208
Investment in associate - - 319 319
Investment property - - 2,193 2,193
Property and equipment - - 3,751 3,751
Right to use assets - - 227 227
186,130 14,024 9,870 210,024
LIABILITIES
Insurance liabilities 115,674 - - 115,674
Mathematical reserves 3,674 - - 3,674
Unearned commissions 2,949 - - 2,949
Due to participants 1,259 - - 1,259
Payables and accrued liabilities 42,176 - - 42,176
Lease liabilities 242 - - 242
165,974 - - 165,974
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk
31 December 2021
One year or less  More than one year No term Total
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 49418 - - 49418
Statutory deposits - - 4771 4771
Insurance receivables 26,685 2,235 - 28920
Deferred acquisition costs 2,038 - - 2,038
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 100,451 - - 100,451
Reinsurers' share of mathematical reserves 3045 - - 3,045
Investments 25574 11699 - 37273
Investment in associate - - 309 309
Investment property - - 2,148 2,148
Property and equipment - - 3878 3878
Right to use asset - - 112 112
207,211 13934 11,218 232,363

LIABILITIES
Insurance liabilities 138,662 - - 138,662
Mathematical reserves 6,289 - - 6,289
Unearned commissions 2,841 - - 2841
Due to participants 856 - - 856
Payables and accrued liabilities 40,193 - - 40,193
Lease liabilities 129 - - 129
188970 - - 188970
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

f) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit
risk on receivables is limited to receivables from policyholders which are carried net of impairment losses, and to insurance and reinsurance companies.
The Group manages credit risk with respect to receivables from policyholders by monitoring risks in accordance with defined policies and procedures.

Management seeks to minimise credit risk with respect to insurance and reinsurance companies by only ceding business to companies with good credit
ratings in London, as well as European and Middle East reinsurance markets.

The Group manages credit risk on its cash deposits and investments by ensuring that the counterparties have an appropriate credit rating. The Group
does not have an internal credit rating of counterparties and uses external credit rating agencies’ websites to rate the companies. The following balances
are with counterparties having a credit rating of B+ (2021: BBB-) or above:

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Cash and balances with banks 53,399 49418

Statutory deposits 3,380 4771
Reinsurers' share of insurance reserves

- Outstanding claims - Reported claims 23,637 58824

Investments - held-to-maturity 5,801 5,666

Insurance receivables 33,946 28294

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on its financial assets was BD 147,071 thousand (2021: BD 183,806 thousand).

g) Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption that an enterprise is a going concern without any intention or need
to liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on adverse terms, The fair value of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, investments, receivables and payables are not materially different from their carrying values as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position and further discussed in note 26.

h) Capital management

Capital requirements are set and regulated by the Central Bank of Bahrain. These requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins.
Further objectives are set by the Group to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis. Adjustments to
current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk characteristics of the Group's activities. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue capital securities.

The Group fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported financial periods and no changes were made to the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for capital management from the previous year.

The Group computes and monitors its solvency margin in accordance with the provisions as set out in the Capital Adequacy Module of the Central Bank
of Bahrain Rulebook - Volume 3.

The capital of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was as follows:

2022 2021

BD ‘000 BD ‘000

Capital available allocated towards required solvency margin 41,859 41267

Required margin of solvency 11,642 10192

Excess of capital available over the required solvency margin 30,217 31,075
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30 RELATED PARTIES

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group and its Parent, and entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. All transactions with such related parties are conducted on normal terms and conditions.

Transactions with related parties included in the statement of profit or loss are as follows:

31 December 2022

Key Entities
management related to
personnel Shareholders shareholders Others
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums 2 4,118 173 26
Reinsurers' share of gross premiums - 5,267 327 -
Gross claims paid - 10,981 65 -
Reinsurers' share of claims paid - 10,256 193 5
Fee and commission income - 1,281 14 21
Acquisition costs - 54 97 -
Corporate expenses - - - -
General and administrative expenses - - - -
Income from an associate - - - 29
31 December 2021
Key Entities
management related to
personnel Shareholders shareholders Others
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Gross premiums 1 2,854 164 22
Reinsurers' share of gross premiums - 6,096 5 118
Gross claims paid - 2,650 61 34
Reinsurers' share of claims paid - 3,770 201 34
Fee and commission income - 1,097 - 17
Acquisition costs - 52 2 69
Corporate expenses - = - 29
General and administrative expenses - 102 - -
Income from an associate = = = 29
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30 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Balances with related parties included in the statement of financial position are as follows:

31 December 2022

Entities

related to
Shareholders shareholders Others
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Insurance receivables 390 103 7
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 5,396 2 -
Insurance liabilities 2,767 28 -
Payables and accrued liabilities 247 514 45
Investment in an associate - - 319

31 December 2021

Entities

related to
Shareholders shareholders Others
BD ‘000 BD ‘000 BD '000
Insurance receivables 373 41 164
Reinsurers' share of insurance liabilities 37679 - -
Insurance liabilities 34101 - 3
Payables and accrued liabilities 1,099 6 138
Investment in an associate - - 309

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
BD ‘000 BD ‘000
Salaries and benefits 841 986
Remuneration and attendance fees to Directors 336 393
Employees' end of service benefits 35 62
1,212 1441
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability exists at the consolidated statement of financial position date in respect of letters of guarantee amounting to BD 3,155 thousand
(2021:BD 4,535 thousand) issued by banks in Kuwait in favour of the Ministries of Commerce and Industry and Health, State of Kuwait to comply with
statutory requirements. The Group maintains a deposit of BD 3,191 thousand (2021: BD 4,548 thousand) in the same banks to cover the amounts
guaranteed.

Legal claims
The Group, in common with the significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The Group, based on
independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on the Group’s income or financial position.

32 COMPARATIVES

Certain prior year amounts have been regrouped to conform to the current year’s presentation. Such regrouping did not effect previously reported profit
for the year or equity.
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